UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

\boxtimes	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUA	NT TO SECTION 1.	3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES	S EXCHANGE A	ACT OF 1934		
		For the q	quarterly period ended March 31, 2	2020 or			
	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUA	NT TO SECTION 13	3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES	S EXCHANGE A	ACT OF 1934		
		For the	transition period fromto _				
		C	ommission File Number 001-36283	3			
			#NEW HOME COMPANY				
			he New Home Company Inc ne of Registrant as Specified in Its				
	Delaware (State or Other Jurisc Incorporation or Orga	liction of nization) (Address	85 Enterprise, Suite 450 Aliso Viejo, California 92656 of principal executive offices) (Zip	p Code)	27-0560089 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)		
		Registrant's telep	ohone number, including area code Not Applicable	e (949) 382-7800			
	(F	ormer name, former a	address and former fiscal year, if char	nged since last re	port)		
		Securities r	egistered pursuant to Section 12(b) o	of the Act:			
	Title of each clas Common Stock, \$0.01 p		Trading Symbol(s) NWHM		of each exchange o registered w York Stock Exch		
receding 0 days. Indi \$ 232.40	icate by check mark whether the registrar 12 months (or for such shorter period the Yes No icate by check mark whether the registrar 5 of this chapter) during the preceding 12	t has submitted electronners (or for such s	equired to file such reports), and (2) ronically every Interactive Data File shorter period that the registrant was	required to be sub- required to subm	to such filing requirements to built such files). Yes	Rule 405 of Regulation S-T S ⋈ No □	
	icate by check mark whether the registrar See the definitions of "large accelerated						
La	arge accelerated filer \square	accelerated filer ⊠	Non-accelerated filer \square	Smaller reporti	ing company ⊠	Emerging growth compar	ny □
			1				

Table of Contents

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 🗆 No 🗵
Registrant's shares of common stock outstanding as of May 7, 2020: 18,179,865

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. FORM 10-Q INDEX

		Page Number
PART I Fin	nancial Information	
Item 1.	Financial Statements	4
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2020 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2019	4
	Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019	5
	Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019	6
	Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 and 2019	7
	Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	8
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	40
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	61
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	61
<u>Part II Otl</u>	her Information	
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	62
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	62
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	64
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	64
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	64
Item 5.	Other Information	65
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	66
	<u>Signatures</u>	67
	3	

Table of Contents

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Dollars in thousands, except par value amounts)

	 March 31, 2020		December 31, 2019
	(Unaudited)		
Assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 87,863	\$	79,314
Restricted cash	424		117
Contracts and accounts receivable	15,637		15,982
Due from affiliates	108		238
Real estate inventories	398,973		433,938
Investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures	29,237		30,217
Deferred tax asset, net	16,589		17,503
Other assets	31,105		25,880
Total assets	\$ 579,936	\$	603,189
Liabilities and equity			
Accounts payable	\$ 21,038	\$	25,044
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	36,083		40,554
Senior notes, net	300,479		304,832
Total liabilities	357,600		370,430
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)			
Equity:			
Stockholders' equity:			
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding	_		_
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 18,957,165 and 20,096,969, shares issued and			
outstanding as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively	190		201
Additional paid-in capital	191,926		193,862

Retained earnings	30,108	38,584
Total stockholders' equity	222,224	232,647
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary	112	112
Total equity	222,336	232,759
Total liabilities and equity	\$ 579,936	\$ 603,189

See accompanying notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

4

Table of Contents

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Three Months l	Ended March 31,
	2020	2019
Revenues:		
Home sales	\$ 95,659	\$ 99,186
Land sales	147	_
Fee building, including management fees	36,227	19,662
	132,033	118,848
Cost of Sales:		
Home sales	84,722	86,569
Land sales	147	_
Fee building	35,497	19,268
	120,366	105,837
Gross Margin:		
Home sales	10,937	12,617
Land sales	_	_
Fee building	730	394
	11,667	13,011
Selling and marketing expenses	(7,466)	(8,679)
General and administrative expenses	(6,023)	(7,391)
Equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures	(1,937)	184
Interest expense	(718)	_
Project abandonment costs	(14,036)	(/
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt	(123)	
Other income (expense), net		(188)
Pretax loss	(18,413)	(2,651)
Benefit for income taxes	9,937	664
Net loss	(8,476)	(1,987)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest		
Net loss attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	\$ (8,476)	\$ (1,987)
Loss per share attributable to The New Home Company Inc.:		
Basic	\$ (0.42)	\$ (0.10)
Diluted	\$ (0.42)	
Weighted average shares outstanding:	· (0.12)	Ţ (0.10)
Basic	19,951,825	19,986,394
Diluted	19,951,825	19,986,394
	17,701,020	,,-,,

See accompanying notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

5

Table of Contents

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY (Dollars in thousands) (Unaudited)

	Stockholders' Equity Three Months Ended March 31												
	Number of										Non-		
	Shares of			Α	Additional				Total	co	ntrolling		
	Common		Common		Paid-in		Retained	Sto	ckholders'	In	terest in		
	Stock		Stock		Capital		Earnings		Equity	Su	ıbsidiary	Tot	al Equity
Balance at December 31, 2018	20,058,904	\$	201	\$	193,132	\$	46,621	\$	239,954	\$	76	\$	240,030
Net loss	_		_		_		(1,987)		(1,987)		_		(1,987)
Stock-based compensation expense	_		_		566		_		566		_		566

Shares net settled with the Company to satisfy employee							
personal income tax liabilities resulting from share based							
compensation plans	(85,420)	_	(488)	_	(488)	_	(488)
Shares issued through stock plans	229,545	1	(1)	_	_	_	_
Repurchase of common stock	(153,916)	(2)	(1,040)	_	(1,042)	_	(1,042)
Balance at March 31, 2019	20,049,113	\$ 200	\$ 192,169	\$ 44,634	\$ 237,003	\$ 76	\$ 237,079
		_					
Balance at December 31, 2019	20,096,969	\$ 201	\$ 193,862	\$ 38,584	\$ 232,647	\$ 112	\$ 232,759
Net loss	_	_	_	(8,476)	(8,476)	_	(8,476)
Stock-based compensation expense	_	_	589	_	589	_	589
Shares net settled with the Company to satisfy employee							
personal income tax liabilities resulting from share based							
compensation plans	(58,098)	_	(303)	_	(303)	_	(303)
Shares issued through stock plans	152,177	1	(1)	_	_	_	_
Repurchase of common stock	(1,233,883)	(12)	(2,221)		(2,233)		(2,233)
Balance at March 31, 2020	18,957,165	\$ 190	\$ 191,926	\$ 30,108	\$ 222,224	\$ 112	\$ 222,336

See accompanying notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

6

Table of Contents

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Dollars in thousands) (Unaudited)

		Three Months Ended March 31,		
		2020	2019	
Operating activities:				
Net loss	\$	(8,476)	\$ (1,987)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:				
Deferred taxes		914	_	
Amortization of stock-based compensation		589	566	
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures		_	260	
Project abandonment costs		14,036	5	
Equity in net (income) loss of unconsolidated joint ventures		1,937	(184)	
Depreciation and amortization		1,845	2,656	
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt		123	(417)	
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Contracts and accounts receivable		345	1,806	
Due from affiliates		130	524	
Real estate inventories		27,130	9,676	
Other assets		(11,804)	(2,343)	
Accounts payable		(4,006)	(18,753)	
Accrued expenses and other liabilities		(5,462)	(4,041)	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities		17,301	(12,232)	
Investing activities:				
Purchases of property and equipment		(125)	(5)	
Contributions and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures		(2,057)	(1,335)	
Distributions of capital and repayment of advances from unconsolidated joint ventures		1,100	2,562	
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities		(1,082)	1,222	
Financing activities:				
Borrowings from credit facility		_	30,000	
Repayments of credit facility		_	(13,500)	
Repurchases of senior notes		(4,827)	(4,512)	
Repurchases of common stock		(2,233)	(1,042)	
Tax withholding paid on behalf of employees for stock awards		(303)	(488)	
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities		(7,363)	10,458	
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash		8,856	(552)	
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash – beginning of period		79,431	42,542	
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash – end of period	\$	88,287	\$ 41,990	
Cush, cush equivalents and restricted cush—one of period	<u> </u>	,		

 $See\ accompanying\ notes\ to\ the\ unaudited\ condensed\ consolidated\ financial\ statements.$

7

Table of Contents

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization

The New Home Company Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in all aspects of residential real estate development, including acquiring land and designing, constructing and selling homes in California and Arizona.

Based on our public float of \$58.9 million at June 28, 2019, we are a smaller reporting company and are subject to reduced disclosure obligations in our periodic reports and proxy statements.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring entries) necessary for the fair presentation of our results for the interim period presented. Results for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year due to seasonal variations and other factors, such as the effects of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") and its impact on our future results.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms "we", "us", "our" and "the Company" refer to the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements and notes. Accordingly, actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

Subsequent Events

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. Since March 31, 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has continued to spread and various state and local governments have issued or extended "stay-at-home" and "shelter-in-place" orders which have impacted and restricted various aspects of our business. At the date of this filing, our construction and sales operations are functioning in most of the jurisdictions in which we operate, subject to government restrictions and safety constraints we have enacted in order to protect our employees, trade contractors, and customers; however, traffic and sales activity has declined and order cancellations have increased. While we cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of this pandemic, an extended economic slowdown in the U.S. could materially impact our consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, and consolidated cash flows in fiscal 2020 and potentially beyond. Further discussion of the potential impacts on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows from the COVID-19 pandemic is provided below under Part II, Item 1A "Risk Factors."

On May 8, 2020, the Company entered into a Tax Benefit Preservation Plan between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as rights agent (as amended from time to time, the "Tax Plan") to help preserve the value of certain deferred tax benefits, including those generated by net operating losses and certain other tax attributes (collectively, the "Tax Benefits"). The Tax Plan is intended to act as a deterrent to any person or entity acquiring shares of the Company equal to or exceeding 4.95%. The Tax Plan reduces the likelihood that changes in our investor base have the unintended effect of limiting the use of our Tax Benefits. In connection with its adoption of the Tax Plan, the Board declared a dividend of one preferred stock purchase right (individually, a "Right" and collectively, the "Rights") for each share of Common Stock, par value \$0.01 ("Common Stock") of the Company outstanding at the close of business on May 20, 2020. As long as the Rights are attached to the Common Stock, the Company will issue one Right (subject to adjustment) with each new share of the Common Stock so that all such shares will have attached Rights. Each Right has an exercise price of \$11.50. Each Right, which is only exercisable if a person or group of affiliated or associated persons acquires beneficial ownership of 4.95% or more of the Common Stock, subject to certain limited exceptions (the "Acquiring Person"), when exercised will entitle the registered holder other than the Acquiring Person the right to acquire that number of shares of Common Stock having a market value of two times the \$11.50 exercise price of the Right, or, at the election of the Board, to exchange each right for one share of Common Stock, in each case, subject to adjustment. Unless redeemed

or exchanged earlier by the Company or terminated, the rights will expire upon the earliest to occur of (i) the close of business on May 7, 2021, (ii) the close of business on the effective date of the repeal of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") if the Board determines that the Tax Plan is no longer necessary or desirable for the preservation of the Tax Benefits or (iii) the time at which the Board determines that the Tax Benefits are fully utilized or no longer available under Section 382 of the Code or that an ownership change under Section 382 of the Code would not adversely impact in any material respect the time period in which the Company could use the Tax Benefits, or materially impair the amount of the Tax Benefits that could be used by the Company in any particular time period, for applicable tax purposes.

Reclassifications

No items in the prior year condensed consolidated financial statements have been reclassified.

Segment Reporting

ASC 280, Segment Reporting ("ASC 280") established standards for the manner in which public enterprises report information about operating segments. The Company's reportable segments are Arizona homebuilding, California homebuilding, and fee building. In accordance with ASC 280, our California homebuilding reportable segment aggregates the Southern California and Northern California homebuilding operating segments based on the similarities in long-term economic characteristics.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We define cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand, demand deposits with financial institutions, and short term liquid investments with a maturity date of less than three months from the date of purchase.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash of \$0.4 million and \$0.1 million as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively, is held in accounts for payments of subcontractor costs incurred in connection with various fee building projects.

The table below shows the line items and amounts of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash as reported within the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets for each period shown that sum to the total of the same such amounts at the end of the periods shown in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of cash flows

	7	Three Months Ended March 31,			
		2020		2019	
		(Dollars in thousands)			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	87,863	\$	41,874	
Restricted cash		424		116	
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown in the statements of cash flows	\$	88,287	\$	41,990	

Real Estate Inventories and Cost of Sales

We capitalize pre-acquisition, land, development and other allocated costs, including interest, property taxes and indirect construction costs. Pre-acquisition costs, including nonrefundable land deposits, are expensed to project abandonment costs if we determine continuation of the prospective project is not probable.

Land, development and other common costs are typically allocated to real estate inventories using a methodology that approximates the relative-sales-value method. Home construction costs per production phase are recorded using the specific identification method. Cost of sales for homes closed includes the estimated total construction costs of each home at completion and an allocation of all applicable land acquisition, land development and related common costs (both incurred and estimated to be incurred) based upon the relative-sales-value of the home within each project. Changes in estimated development and common costs are allocated prospectively to remaining homes in the project.

In accordance with ASC 360, *Property, Plant and Equipment* ("ASC 360"), inventory is stated at cost, unless the carrying amount is determined not to be recoverable, in which case inventory is written down to its fair value. We review each real estate asset on a quarterly basis or whenever indicators of impairment exist. Real estate assets include projects actively selling and projects under development or held for future development. Indicators of impairment include, but are not limited to, significant decreases in local housing market values and selling prices of comparable homes, significant decreases in gross margins or sales absorption rates, costs significantly in excess of budget, and actual or projected cash flow losses.

If there are indicators of impairment, we perform a detailed budget and cash flow review of the applicable real estate inventories to determine whether the estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the project are more or less than the asset's carrying value. If the estimated future undiscounted cash flows exceed the asset's carrying value, no impairment adjustment is required. However, if the estimated future undiscounted cash flows are less than the asset's carrying value then the asset is impaired. If the asset is deemed impaired, it is written down to its fair value in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 820").

When estimating undiscounted future cash flows of a project, we make various assumptions, including: (i) expected sales prices and sales incentives to be offered, including the number of homes available, pricing and incentives being offered by us or other builders in other projects, and future sales price adjustments based on market and economic trends; (ii) expected sales pace and cancellation rates based on local housing market conditions, competition and historical trends; (iii) costs expended to date and expected to be incurred including, but not limited to, land and land development costs, home construction costs, interest costs, indirect construction and overhead costs, and selling and marketing costs; (iv) alternative product offerings that may be offered that could have an impact on sales pace, sales price and/or building costs; and (v) alternative uses for the property.

Many assumptions are interdependent and a change in one may require a corresponding change to other assumptions. For example, increasing or decreasing sales absorption rates has a direct impact on the estimated per unit sales price of a home, and the level of time sensitive costs (such as indirect construction, overhead and carrying costs). Depending on the underlying objective of the project, assumptions could have a significant impact on the projected cash flow analysis. For example, if our objective is to preserve operating margins, our cash flow analysis will be different than if the objective is to increase the velocity of sales. These objectives may vary significantly from project to project and change over time.

If a real estate asset is deemed impaired, the impairment is calculated by determining the amount the asset's carrying value exceeds its fair value in accordance with ASC 820. We calculate the fair value of real estate inventories considering a land residual value analysis and a discounted cash flow analysis. Under the discounted cash flow method, the fair value is determined by calculating the present value of future cash flows using a risk adjusted discount rate. Some of the critical assumptions involved with measuring the asset's fair value include estimating future revenues, sales absorption rates, development and construction costs, and other applicable project costs. This evaluation and the assumptions used by management to determine future estimated cash flows and fair value require a substantial degree of judgment, especially with respect to real estate projects that have a substantial amount of development to be completed, have not started selling or are in the early stages of sales, or are longer in duration. Actual revenues, costs and time to complete and sell a community could vary from these estimates which could impact the calculation of fair value of the asset and the corresponding amount of impairment that is recorded in our results of operations. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, no real estate impairments were recorded. In cases where we decide to abandon a project, we will fully expense all costs capitalized to such project and will expense and accrue any additional costs that we are contractually obligated to incur. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, \$14.0 million and \$5,000 in project abandonment costs were incurred, respectively.

Capitalization of Interest

We follow the practice of capitalizing interest to real estate inventories during the period of development and to investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, when applicable, in accordance with ASC 835, *Interest* ("ASC 835"). Interest capitalized as a cost component of real estate inventories is included in cost of home sales as related homes or lots are sold. To the extent interest is capitalized to investment in unconsolidated joint ventures, it is included as a reduction of equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures when the related homes or lots are sold to third parties. In instances where the Company purchases land from an unconsolidated joint venture, the pro rata share of interest capitalized to investment in unconsolidated joint ventures is added to the basis of the land acquired and recognized as a cost of sale upon the delivery of the related homes or land to a third-party buyer. To the extent our debt exceeds our qualified assets as defined in ASC 835, we expense a portion of the interest incurred by us. Qualified assets represent projects that are actively selling or under development as well as investments in unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method until such equity investees begin their principal operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"). Under ASC 606, we recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To do this, the Company performs the following five steps as outlined in ASC 606: (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Home Sales and Profit Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, home sales revenue is recognized when our performance obligations within the underlying sales contracts are fulfilled. We consider our obligations fulfilled when closing conditions are complete, title has transferred to the homebuyer, and collection of the purchase price is reasonably assured. Sales incentives are recorded as a reduction of revenues when the respective home is closed. The profit we record is based on the calculation of cost of sales, which is dependent on our allocation of costs, as described in more detail above in the section entitled "Real Estate Inventories and Cost of Sales." When it is determined that the earnings process is not complete, the related revenue and profit are deferred for recognition in future periods.

Land Sales and Profit Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, land sales revenue is recognized when our performance obligations within the underlying sales contracts are fulfilled. The performance obligations in land sales contracts are typically satisfied at the point in time consideration and title is transferred through escrow at closing. Total revenue is typically recognized simultaneously with transfer of title to the customer. In instances where material performance obligations may exist after the closing date, a portion of the price is allocated to each performance obligation with revenue recognized as such obligations are completed. Variable consideration, such as profit participation, may be included within the land sales transaction price based on the terms of a contract. The Company includes the estimated amount of variable consideration to which it will be entitled only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur when any uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Fee Building

The Company enters into fee building agreements to provide services whereby it builds homes on behalf of third-party property owners. The third-party property owner funds all project costs incurred by the Company to build and sell the homes. The Company primarily enters into cost plus fee contracts where it charges third-party property owners for all direct and indirect costs plus a fee. The fee is typically a per-unit fixed fee or based on a percentage of the cost or home sales revenue of the project, depending on the terms of the agreement with the third-party property owner. For these types of contracts, the Company recognizes revenue based on the actual total costs it has incurred plus the applicable fee. In accordance with ASC 606, we apply the percentage-of-completion method, using the cost-to-cost approach, as it most accurately measures the progress of our efforts in satisfying our obligations within the fee building agreements. Under this approach, revenue is earned in proportion to total costs incurred divided by total costs expected to be incurred. In the course of providing fee building services, the Company routinely subcontracts for services and incurs other direct costs on behalf of the property owners. These costs are passed through to the property owners and, in accordance with GAAP, are included in the Company's revenues and cost of sales.

The Company also provides construction management and coordination services and sales and marketing services as part of agreements with third parties and its unconsolidated joint ventures. In certain contracts, the Company also provides project management and administrative services. For most services provided, the Company fulfills its related obligations as time-based measures, according to the input method guidance described in ASC 606. Accordingly, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis as the Company's efforts are expended evenly throughout the performance period. The Company may also have an obligation to manage the home or lot sales process as part of providing sales and marketing services. This obligation is considered fulfilled when related homes or lots close escrow, as these events represent milestones reached according to the output method guidance described in ASC 606. Accordingly, revenue is recognized in the period that the corresponding lots or homes close escrow. Costs associated with these services are recognized as incurred.

The Company's fee building revenues have historically been concentrated with a small number of customers. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, one customer comprised 98% and 91%, respectively, of fee building revenue. The balance of the fee building revenues primarily represented management fees earned from unconsolidated joint ventures and third-party customers. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, one customer comprised 73% and 65% of contracts and accounts receivable, respectively, with the balance of contracts and accounts receivable primarily representing escrow receivables from home sales.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company accounts for variable interest entities in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation ("ASC 810"). Under ASC 810, a variable interest entity ("VIE") is created when: (a) the equity investment at risk in the entity is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including the equity holders; (b) the entity's equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or (iii) do not have the right to receive expected residual returns of the entity; or (c) the entity's equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests, and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of the equity holder with disproportionately few voting rights.

Once we consider the sufficiency of equity and voting rights of each legal entity, we then evaluate the characteristics of the equity holders' interests, as a group, to see if they qualify as controlling financial interests. Our real estate joint ventures consist of limited partnerships and limited liability companies. For entities structured as limited partnerships or limited liability companies, our evaluation of whether the equity holders (equity partners other than us in each our joint ventures) lack the characteristics of a controlling financial interest includes the evaluation of whether the limited partners or non-managing members (the non-controlling equity holders) lack both substantive participating rights and substantive kick-out rights, defined as follows:

- Participating rights provide the non-controlling equity holders the ability to direct significant financial and operational decision made in the ordinary course of business that most significantly influence the entity's economic performance.
- · Kick-out rights allow the non-controlling equity holders to remove the general partner or managing member without cause.

If we conclude that any of the three characteristics of a VIE are met, including if equity holders lack the characteristics of a controlling financial interest because they lack both substantive participating rights and substantive kick-out rights, we conclude that the entity is a VIE and evaluate it for consolidation under the variable interest model.

If an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or right to receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is considered the primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE.

Under ASC 810, a nonrefundable deposit paid to an entity may be deemed to be a variable interest that will absorb some or all of the entity's expected losses if they occur. Our land purchase and lot option deposits generally represent our maximum exposure to the land seller if we elect not to purchase the optioned property. In some instances, we may also expend funds for due diligence, development and construction activities with respect to optioned land prior to takedown. Such costs are classified as real estate inventories, which we would have to write off should we not exercise the option. Therefore, whenever we enter into a land option or purchase contract with an entity and make a nonrefundable deposit, a VIE may have been created. At March 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding nonrefundable cash deposits of \$13.6 million pertaining to land option contracts and purchase contracts.

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company was not required to consolidate any VIEs. In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing reassessments of whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE.

Non-controlling Interest

During 2013, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with a third-party property owner. In accordance with ASC 810, the Company analyzed this arrangement and determined that it was not a VIE; however, the Company determined it was required to consolidate the joint venture as the Company has a controlling financial interest with the powers to direct the major decisions of the entity. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the third-party investor had an equity balance of \$0.1 million and \$0.1 million, respectively.

Investments in and Advances to Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

We use the equity method to account for investments in homebuilding and land development joint ventures when any of the following situations exist: 1) the joint venture qualifies as a VIE and we are not the primary beneficiary, 2) we do not control the joint venture but have the ability to exercise significant influence over its operating and financial policies, or 3) we function as the managing member or general partner of the joint venture and our joint venture partner has substantive participating rights or can replace us as managing member or general partner without cause.

As of March 31, 2020, the Company concluded that none of its joint ventures were VIEs and accounted for these entities under the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, we recognize our proportionate share of earnings and losses generated by the joint venture upon the delivery of lots or homes to third parties. Our proportionate share of intra-entity profits and losses are eliminated until the related asset has been sold by the unconsolidated joint venture to third parties. We classify cash distributions received from equity method investees using the cumulative earnings approach consistent with ASC 230, *Statement of Cash Flows* ("ASC 230"). Under the cumulative earnings approach, distributions received are considered returns on investment and is classified as cash inflows from operating activities unless the cumulative distributions received exceed cumulative equity in earnings. When such an excess occurs, the current-period distribution up to this excess is considered a return of investment and is classified as cash inflows from investing activities. Our ownership interests in our unconsolidated joint ventures vary, but are generally less than or equal to 35%. The accounting policies of our joint ventures are consistent with those of the Company.

We review real estate inventory held by our unconsolidated joint ventures for impairment on a quarterly basis, consistent with how we review our real estate inventories as described in more detail above in the section entitled "Real Estate Inventories and Cost of Sales." We also review our investments in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures for evidence of other-than-temporary declines in value in accordance with ASC 820. To the extent we deem any declines in value of our investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures to be other-than-temporary, we impair our investment accordingly. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded other-than-temporary, noncash impairment charges of \$2.3 million and \$0, respectively, related to our investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures.

Selling and Marketing Expense

Costs incurred for tangible assets directly used in the sales process such as our sales offices, design studios and model landscaping and furnishings are capitalized to other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets under ASC 340, *Other Assets and Deferred Costs* ("ASC 340"). These costs are depreciated to selling and marketing expenses generally over the shorter of 30 months or the actual estimated life of the selling community. All other selling and marketing costs, such as commissions and advertising, are expensed as incurred.

Warranty and Litigation Accruals

We offer warranties on our homes that generally cover various defects in workmanship or materials, or structural construction defects for one year. In addition, we provide a more limited warranty, which generally ranges from a minimum of two years up to the period covered by the applicable statute of repose, that covers certain defined construction defects. Estimated future direct warranty costs are accrued and charged to cost of sales in the period when the related homebuilding revenues are recognized. Amounts are accrued based upon the Company's historical claim and expense rates. In addition, the Company has received warranty payments from third-party property owners for certain of its fee building projects that have since closed-out where the Company has the contractual risk of construction. These payments are recorded as warranty accruals. We assess the adequacy of our warranty accrual on a quarterly basis and adjust the amounts recorded if necessary. Our warranty accrual is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets and adjustments to our warranty accrual are recorded through cost of sales.

While our subcontractors who perform our homebuilding work generally provide us with an indemnity for claims relating to their workmanship and materials, we also purchase general liability insurance that covers development and construction activity at each of our communities. Our subcontractors are usually covered by these programs through an owner-controlled insurance program, or "OCIP." Consultants such as engineers and architects are generally not covered by the OCIP but are required to maintain their own insurance. In general, we maintain insurance, subject to deductibles and self-insured retentions, to protect us against various risks associated with our activities, including, among others, general liability, "all-risk" property, construction defects, workers' compensation, automobile, and employee fidelity. Our master general liability policies which cover most of our projects allow for our warranty spend to erode our self-insured retention requirements. We establish a separate reserve for warranty and for known and incurred but not reported ("IBNR") construction defect claims based on our historical claim and expense data. Our warranty accrual and litigation reserves for construction defect claims are presented on a gross basis within accrued expenses and other liabilities in our consolidated financial statements without consideration of insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries from insurance carriers are presented as warranty insurance receivables within other assets in our consolidated financial statements and are recorded based on actual insurance claims and amounts determined using our construction defect claim and warranty accrual estimates, our insurance policy coverage limits for the applicable policy years and historical recovery rates.

Contracts and Accounts Receivable

Contracts and accounts receivable primarily represent the fees earned, but not collected, and reimbursable project costs incurred in connection with fee building agreements. The Company periodically evaluates the collectability of its contracts receivable, and, if it is determined that a receivable might not be fully collectible, an allowance is recorded for the amount deemed uncollectible. This allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on management's evaluation of the contracts involved and the financial condition of its customers. Factors considered in such evaluations include, but are not limited to: (i) customer type; (ii) historical contract performance; (iii) historical collection and delinquency trends; (iv) customer credit worthiness; and (v) general economic conditions. In addition to contracts receivable, escrow receivables are included in contracts and accounts receivable in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no allowance was recorded related to contracts and accounts receivable.

Property, Equipment and Capitalized Selling and Marketing Costs

Property, equipment and capitalized selling and marketing costs are recorded at cost and included in other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. Property and equipment are depreciated to general and administrative expenses using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from three to five years. Leasehold improvements are stated at cost and are amortized to general and administrative expenses using the straight-line method generally over the shorter of either their estimated useful lives or the term of the lease. Capitalized selling and marketing costs are depreciated using the straight-line method to selling and marketing expenses over the shorter of either 30 months or the actual estimated life of the selling community.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with ASC 740, *Income Taxes* ("ASC 740"). The consolidated provision for, or benefit from, income taxes is calculated using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.

Each quarter we assess our deferred tax asset to determine whether all or any portion of the asset is more likely than not (defined as a likelihood of more than 50%) unrealizable under ASC 740. We are required to establish a valuation allowance for any portion of the tax asset we conclude is more likely than not unrealizable. Our assessment considers, among other things, the nature, frequency and severity of prior cumulative losses, forecasts of future taxable income, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our utilization experience with net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards and the available tax planning alternatives, to the extent these items are applicable, and the availability of net operating loss carrybacks under certain circumstances. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends primarily on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the differences become deductible, as well as the ability to carryback net operating losses in the event that this option becomes available. The value of our deferred tax assets will depend on applicable income tax rates. Judgment is required in determining the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements and/or tax returns. Differences between anticipated and actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no valuation allowance was recorded.

ASC 740 defines the methodology for recognizing the benefits of uncertain tax return positions as well as guidance regarding the measurement of the resulting tax benefits. These provisions require an enterprise to recognize the financial statement effects of a tax position when it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the position will be sustained upon examination. In addition, these provisions provide guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The evaluation of whether a tax position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold requires a substantial degree of judgment by management based on the individual facts and circumstances. At March 31, 2020, the Company has concluded that there were no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in its financial statements.

The Company classifies any interest and penalties related to income taxes assessed as part of income tax expense. As of March 31, 2020, the Company has not been assessed interest or penalties by any major tax jurisdictions related to any open tax periods.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for share-based awards in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation ("ASC 718"). ASC 718 requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in a company's financial statements. ASC 718 requires all entities to apply a fair-value-based measurement method in accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees except for equity instruments held by employee share ownership plans. In 2018, the scope of ASC 718 was expanded to include to include share-based payments for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees, with certain exceptions. The Company had one nonemployee equity award that was fully expensed during the 2019 first quarter and was accounted for in accordance with ASC 718.

Share Repurchase and Retirement

When shares are retired, the Company's policy is to allocate the excess of the repurchase price over the par value of shares acquired to both retained earnings and additional paid-in capital. The portion allocated to additional paid-in capital is determined by applying a percentage, which is determined by dividing the number of shares to be retired by the number of shares issued, to the balance of additional paid-in capital as of the retirement date. The residual, if any, is allocated to retained earnings as of the retirement date

During the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company repurchased and retired 1,233,883 and 153,916 shares of its common stock at an aggregate purchase price of \$2.2 million and \$1.0 million, respectively. All repurchased shares were returned to the status of authorized but unissued.

Subsequent to March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased an additional 777,300 shares for \$1.4 million pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan, which in the aggregate since the beginning of the year through May 7, 2020 represented a total repurchase of 2,011,183 shares for \$3.6 million, or \$1.78 per share, and 10% of its beginning share count. The purchases were made under a previously announced stock repurchase program that had a remaining purchase authorization of \$1.8 million as of May 7, 2020.

Dividends

No dividends were paid on our common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019. We currently intend to retain our future earnings to finance the development and expansion of our business and, therefore, do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, compliance with Delaware law, restrictions contained in any financing instruments, including but not limited to, our unsecured credit facility and senior notes indenture, and such other factors as our board of directors deem relevant.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Company's status as an "emerging growth company" pursuant to the provisions of the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act") ended on December 31, 2019. Section 102 of the JOBS Act provides that an "emerging growth company" can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2) (B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. As previously disclosed and prior to the expiration of its "emerging growth company" status, the Company had chosen, irrevocably, to "opt out" of such extended transition period, and as a result, complied with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such standards was required for non-emerging growth companies.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) - Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU 2016-13"), which changes the impairment model for most financial assets and certain other instruments from an "incurred loss" approach to a new "expected credit loss" methodology. The FASB followed up with ASU 2019-04, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments in April 2019, ASU 2019-05, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), in May 2019, ASU 2019-11, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) and Leases (Topic 842) in February 2020 to provide further clarification on this topic. The standard is effective for annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2020, and requires full retrospective application upon adoption. During November 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) and Leases (Topic 842) Effective Dates that provides for additional implementation time for smaller reporting companies with the standard being effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. As a smaller reporting company, we are not adopting the requirements of ASU 2016-13 for the year beginning January 1, 2020, however we do not anticipate a material impact to our consolidated financial statements as a result of adoption.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) - Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement ("ASU 2018-13"). The amendments in ASU 2018-13 modify certain disclosure requirements of fair value measurements. The Company adopted ASU 2018-13 in the 2020 first quarter with no impact to the condensed consolidated financial statements as a result.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, *Income Taxes (Topic 740)- Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes* ("ASU 2019-12"), which is intended to simplify various aspects related to accounting for income taxes. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020, with early adoption permitted. We are currently in the process of evaluating the effects on our financial statements of adopting ASU 2019-12.

In January 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-01, *Investments - Equity Securities (Topic 321)*, *Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323)*, and Derivative and Hedging (Topic 815) ("ASU 2020-01"). ASU 2020-01 clarifies the interaction of the accounting for equity securities under Topic 321 and investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting in Topic 323 and the accounting for certain forward contracts and purchased options accounted for under Topic 815. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company expects no material impact to our consolidated financial statements as a result of adoption.

2. Computation of Loss Per Share

The following table sets forth the components used in the computation of basic and diluted loss per share for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019:

		Three Months Ended March 31,			
		2020		2019	
	(Dollar	rs in thousands, ex	cept per	share amounts)	
Numerator:					
Net loss attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	\$	(8,476)	\$	(1,987)	
Denominator:					
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding		19,951,825		19,986,394	
Effect of dilutive shares:					
Stock options and unvested restricted stock units		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding		19,951,825		19,986,394	
Basic loss per share attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	\$	(0.42)	\$	(0.10)	
Diluted loss per share attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	\$	(0.42)	\$	(0.10)	
Antidilutive stock options and unvested restricted stock units not included in diluted loss per share		1,785,826		1,451,485	

3. Contracts and Accounts Receivable

Contracts and accounts receivable consist of the following:

	March 2020	· ·	cember 31, 2019
		(Dollars in thousands	s)
Contracts receivable:			
Costs incurred on fee building projects	\$	35,497 \$	93,281
Estimated earnings		730	2,052
		36,227	95,333
Less: amounts collected during the period		(24,620)	(84,979)
Contracts receivable	\$	11,607 \$	10,354
Contracts receivable:			
Billed	\$	— \$	_
Unbilled		11,607	10,354
		11,607	10,354
Accounts receivable:			
Escrow receivables		3,679	5,392
Other receivables		351	236
Contracts and accounts receivable	\$	15,637 \$	15,982

Billed contracts receivable represent amounts billed to customers that have yet to be collected. Unbilled contracts receivable represents the contract revenue recognized but not yet invoiced. All unbilled receivables as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are expected to be billed and collected within 30 days. Accounts payable at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 includes \$10.6 million and \$9.6 million, respectively, related to costs incurred under the Company's fee building contracts.

4. Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories are summarized as follows:

	M	March 31,		ember 31,
		2020		2019
		(Dollars in thousands)		
Deposits and pre-acquisition costs	\$	16,880	\$	17,865
Land held and land under development		168,672		180,823
Homes completed or under construction		154,430		183,711
Model homes		58,991		51,539
	\$	398,973	\$	433,938

All of our deposits and pre-acquisition costs are nonrefundable, except for refundable deposits of \$0.1 million and \$0.1 million as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.

Land held and land under development includes land costs and costs incurred during site development such as development, indirects, and permits. Homes completed or under construction and model homes include all costs associated with home construction, including allocated land, development, indirects, permits, materials and labor (except for capitalized selling and marketing costs, which are classified in other assets).

In accordance with ASC 360, inventory is stated at cost, unless the carrying amount is determined not to be recoverable, in which case inventory is written down to its fair value. We review each real estate asset at the community-level on a quarterly basis or whenever indicators of impairment exist. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized no real estate-related impairments.

During the 2020 first quarter, the Company terminated its option agreement for a luxury condominium project in Scottsdale, Arizona. Due to the lower demand levels experienced at this community coupled with the substantial investment required to build out the remainder of the project, the Company decided to abandon the future acquisition, development, construction and sale of future phases of the project that were under option. In accordance with ASC 970-360-40-1, the capitalized costs related to the project are expensed and not allocated to other components of the project that the Company did develop. For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded an abandonment charge of \$14.0 million representing the capitalized costs that have accumulated related to the portion of the project that is being abandoned. This charge is included within project abandonment costs in the accompanying condensed consolidated statement of operations.

5. Capitalized Interest

Interest is capitalized to inventory and investment in unconsolidated joint ventures during development and other qualifying activities. Interest capitalized as a cost of inventory is included in cost of sales as related homes and land parcels are closed. Interest capitalized to investment in unconsolidated joint ventures is amortized to equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures as related joint venture homes or lots close, or in instances where lots are sold from the unconsolidated joint venture to the Company, the interest is added to the land basis and included in cost of sales when the related lots or homes are sold to third-party buyers. Interest expense is comprised of interest incurred but not capitalized and is reported as interest expense in our condensed consolidated statements of operations. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 interest incurred, capitalized and expensed was as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31,					
	<u> </u>	2020		2019		
		ds)				
Interest incurred	\$	6,380	\$	7,761		
Interest capitalized to inventory		(5,662)		(7,761)		
Interest expensed	\$	718	\$	_		
Capitalized interest in beginning inventory	\$	26,397	\$	25,681		
Interest capitalized as a cost of inventory		5,662		7,761		
Capitalized interest transferred from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures to inventory upon lot acquisition		_		10		
Previously capitalized interest included in cost of home and land sales		(6,146)		(4,852)		
Previously capitalized interest included in project abandonments costs		(761)		<u>—</u>		
Capitalized interest in ending inventory	\$	25,152	\$	28,600		
Capitalized interest in beginning investment in unconsolidated joint ventures	\$	541	\$	713		
Capitalized interest transferred from investment in unconsolidated joint ventures to inventory upon lot acquisition		_		(10)		
Previously capitalized interest included in equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures		(448)		(31)		
Capitalized interest in ending investment in unconsolidated joint ventures		93		672		
Total capitalized interest in ending inventory and investments in unconsolidated joint ventures	\$	25,245	\$	29,272		
Capitalized interest as a percentage of inventory		6.3%		5.1%		
Interest included in cost of home sales as a percentage of home sales revenue		6.5%		4.9%		
Capitalized interest as a percentage of investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures		0.3%		2.0%		

For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company expensed \$0.8 million in interest previously capitalized due to the abandonment of the future phases of one of its existing homebuilding communities. For more information, please refer to Note 4.

For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company expensed \$0.4 million in interest previously capitalized to investments in unconsolidated joint ventures as the result of an other-than-temporary impairment to its investment in one joint venture. For more information, please refer to Note 6.

6. Investments in and Advances to Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had ownership interests in 10 unconsolidated joint ventures with ownership percentages that generally ranged from 5% to 35%. The condensed combined balance sheets for our unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method were as follows:

	March 31, 2020	Γ	December 31, 2019
	 (Dollars in	nds)	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 30,514	\$	31,484
Restricted cash	13,237		13,852
Real estate inventories	234,460		241,416
Other assets	4,108		3,843
Total assets	\$ 282,319	\$	290,595
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$ 16,570	\$	16,778
Notes payable	21,910		28,665
Total liabilities	38,480		45,443
The New Home Company's equity(1)	 28,403		27,722
Other partners' equity	215,436		217,430
Total equity	 243,839		245,152
Total liabilities and equity	\$ 282,319	\$	290,595
Debt-to-capitalization ratio	8.2%		10.5%
Debt-to-equity ratio	9.0%		11.7%

Balance represents the Company's interest, as reflected in the financial records of the respective joint ventures. This balance differs from the investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures balance reflected in the Company's consolidated balance sheets by\$0.8 million due an other-than-temporary impairment charge to the Company's investment, interest capitalized to the Company's investment in joint ventures and certain other differences in outside basis.

The condensed combined statements of operations for our unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method were as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31,					
		2020	2019			
		s)				
Revenues	\$	31,647	\$	42,287		
Cost of sales and expenses		30,285		41,774		
Net income of unconsolidated joint ventures	\$	1,362	\$	513		
Equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations	\$	(1,937)	\$	184		

The Company reviews its investments in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures for other-than-temporary declines in value in accordance with ASC 820. To the extent we deem any declines in value of our investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures to be other-than-temporary, we impair our investment accordingly. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded other-than-temporary, noncash impairment charges of \$2.3 million and \$0, respectively. The 2020 impairment charge related to our investment in the Arantine Hills Holdings LP ("Bedford") joint venture and is included in equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. The Company has agreed in principle to sell our interest in this joint venture to our partner, and we are currently in the process of drafting definitive agreements associated with our exit from the joint venture and the sale of our interest for less than our current carrying value. This transaction is expected to close around the end of the 2020 second quarter. We are expected to receive \$5.1 million in cash for our anticipated sale of our partnership interest and expect to have an option to purchase at market 30% of the lots from the masterplan community owned by the joint venture.

As a smaller reporting company, the Company is subject to the provisions of Rule 8-03(b)(3) of Regulation S-X which requires the disclosure of certain financial information for equity investees that constitute 20% or more of the Company's consolidated net income (loss). For the three months ended March 31, 2019, no profit or loss allocations from the Company's unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method exceeded 20% of the Company's consolidated net loss. For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the loss allocation from one of the Company's unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method exceeded 20% of the Company's consolidated net loss. The table below presents financial information for this joint venture for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019:

	Three Months Ended March 31,				
		2020		2019	
		(Dollars in	thousands	s)	
Revenues	\$	4,624	\$	3,698	
Cost of land sales		3,065		3,375	
Gross margin	\$	1,559	\$	323	
Expenses		674		636	
Net income (loss)	\$	885	\$	(313)	
Equity in net loss of unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of					
operations	\$	(2,226)	\$	(30)	

In the above table, the Company's \$2.2 million loss included in equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures for the three months ended March 31, 2020 includes a \$2.3 million other-than-temporary impairment charge related to its interest in this joint venture.

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company earned \$0.4 million and \$0.5 million respectively, in management fees from its unconsolidated joint ventures. For additional detail regarding management fees, please see Note 12.

7. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following:

	1	March 31, 2020	Dec	eember 31, 2019	
		(Dollars in thousands)			
Capitalized selling and marketing costs, net(1)	\$	6,662	\$	7,148	
Prepaid income taxes(2)		11,676		1,032	
Insurance receivable ⁽³⁾		6,500		10,900	
Warranty insurance receivable(4)		1,878		1,852	
Prepaid expenses		2,388		2,729	
Right-of-use lease assets		1,695		1,988	
Other		306		231	
	\$	31,105	\$	25,880	

Capitalized selling and marketing costs includes costs incurred for tangible assets directly used in the sales process such as our sales offices, design studios and model furnishings, and also includes model landscaping costs, which were \$2.4 million and \$2.6 million as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. The Company depreciated \$1.8 million and \$2.6 million of capitalized selling and marketing costs to selling and marketing expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The amount at March 31, 2020 includes approximately \$10.7 million of expected federal income tax refunds due to the recent enactment of the CARES act which allows net operating losses (1)

⁽²⁾ generated from 2018 – 2020 to be carried back five years.

At December 31, 2019, the Company recorded insurance receivables of \$10.9 million in connection with \$10.9 million of litigation reserves recorded. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, \$4.2 million was paid by insurance related to one claim and the Company also reduced its insurance receivable estimate by \$0.2 million for a separate claim, resulting in an insurance

receivable balance of \$6.5 million at March 31, 2020, with a corresponding decrease recorded within litigation reserves. For more information, please refer to Note 8. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company adjusted its warranty insurance receivable upward by \$0.1 million to true-up the receivable to its estimate of qualifying reimbursable expenditures, which resulted in pretax income of the same amount.

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:

		March 31,		December 31,
		2020		2019
		nds)		
Warranty accrual (1)	\$	6,864	\$	7,223
Litigation reserves (2)		6,500		10,900
Accrued interest		11,537		5,796
Accrued compensation and benefits		3,373		5,350
Completion reserve		1,367		3,167
Customer deposits		3,191		3,574
Lease liabilities		1,893		2,243
Other accrued expenses		1,358		2,301
	\$	36,083	\$	40,554

(1) Included in the amount at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is approximately \$1.9 million and \$1.9 million, respectively, of warranty liabilities estimated to be recovered by our insurance policies

During 2019, we recorded litigation reserves totaling \$5.9 million related to ordinary course litigation which developed and became probable and estimable within the 2019 fourth quarter. Further, as a result of the development of the construction defect related claims within the litigation reserve and their impact to the Company's litigation reserve estimates for IBNR future construction defect claims, we recorded an additional \$5.0 million of IBNR construction defect claim reserves resulting in aggregate litigation reserves totaling \$10.9 million as of December 31, 2019. Because the self-insured retention deductibles had been met for each claim covered by the \$5.9 million reserve, and the self-insured retention deductibles are expected to be met for the \$5.0 million IBNR construction defect claim reserves, the Company recorded estimated insurance receivables of \$10.9 million offsetting the litigation reserves as of December 31, 2019. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, \$4.2 million was paid by insurance related to one claim and the Company also reduced its litigation reserve estimate by \$0.2 million for a separate claim, resulting in a litigation reserve balance of \$6.5 million at March 31, 2020, with a corresponding decrease recorded within insurance receivables. Please refer to Note 7.

We maintain general liability insurance designed to protect us against a portion of our risk of loss from construction-related warranty and construction defect claims. Our master general liability policies which cover most of our projects allow for our warranty spend to erode our self-insured retention requirements. We establish and track separately our warranty accrual and litigation reserves for both known and IBNR construction defect claims. Our warranty accrual and litigation reserves for construction defect claims are presented on a gross basis within accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements without consideration of insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries from insurance carriers are tracked separately between warranty insurance receivables and insurance receivables related to litigated claims and are presented within other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. Our warranty accrual and related estimated insurance recoveries are based on historical warranty claim and expense data, and expected recoveries from insurance carriers are recorded based on actual insurance claims and amounts determined using our warranty accrual estimates, our insurance policy coverage limits for the applicable policy years and historical recovery rates. Our litigation reserves for both known and IBNR future construction defect claims based on historical claim and expense data, and expected recoveries from insurance carriers are recorded based on actual insurance claims and amounts determined using our construction defect claim accrual estimates, our insurance policy coverage limits for the applicable policy years and historical recovery rates. Because of the inherent uncertainty and variability in these assumptions, our actual costs and related insurance recoveries could differ significantly from amounts currently estimated.

Changes in our warranty accrual are detailed in the table set forth below:

		Three Months Ended March 31,			
		2020	2019		
		thousands)			
Beginning warranty accrual for homebuilding projects	\$	7,195	\$ 6,681		
Warranty provision for homebuilding projects		421	427		
Warranty payments for homebuilding projects		(780)	(341)		
Ending warranty accrual for homebuilding projects		6,836	6,767		
Beginning warranty accrual for fee building projects		28	217		
Warranty provision for fee building projects		_	9		
Warranty efforts for fee building projects			(48)		
Ending warranty accrual for fee building projects		28	178		
Total ending warranty accrual	\$	6,864	\$ 6,945		

9. Senior Notes and Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

Indebtedness consisted of the following:

	M	arch 31, 2020	De	cember 31, 2019	
		(Dollars in thousands)			
7.25% Senior Notes due 2022, net	\$	300,479	\$	304,832	
Unsecured revolving credit facility		_		_	
Total Indebtedness	\$	300,479	\$	304,832	

On March 17, 2017, the Company completed the sale of \$250 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 (the "Existing Notes"), in a private placement. The Existing Notes were issued at an offering price of 98.961% of their face amount, which represented a yield to maturity of 7.50%. On May 4, 2017, the Company completed a tack-on private placement offering through the sale of an additional \$75 million in aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 ("Additional Notes"). The Additional Notes were issued at an offering price of 102.75% of their face amount plus accrued interest since March 17, 2017, which represented a yield to maturity of 6.438%. Net proceeds from the Existing Notes were used to repay all borrowings outstanding under the Company's senior unsecured revolving credit facility with the remainder used for general corporate purposes. Net proceeds from the Additional Notes were used for working capital, land acquisition and general corporate purposes. Interest on the Existing Notes and the Additional Notes (together, the "Notes") is paid semiannually in arrears on April 1 and October 1. The Notes were exchanged in an exchange offer for Notes that are identical to the original Notes, except that they are registered under the Securities Act, and are freely tradeable in accordance with applicable law.

The carrying amount of our Senior Notes listed above at March 31, 2020 is net of the unamortized discount of \$1.0 million, unamortized premium of \$0.8 million, and unamortized debt issuance costs of \$2.6 million, each of which are amortized and capitalized to interest costs on a straight-line basis over the respective terms of the notes which approximates the effective interest method. The carrying amount for the Senior Notes listed above at December 31, 2019, is net of the unamortized discount of \$1.1 million, unamortized premium of \$0.9 million, and unamortized debt issuance costs of \$3.0 million. Debt issuance costs for the unsecured revolving credit facility, which totaled \$0.4 million as of March 31, 2020, are included in other assets and amortized and capitalized to interest costs on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement.

The Notes are general senior unsecured obligations that rank equally in right of payment to all existing and future senior indebtedness, including borrowings under the Company's senior unsecured revolving credit facility. The Notes contain certain restrictive covenants, including a limitation on additional indebtedness and a limitation on restricted payments. Restricted payments include, among other things, dividends, investments in unconsolidated entities, and stock repurchases. Under the limitation on additional indebtedness, we are permitted to incur specified categories of indebtedness but are prohibited, aside from those exceptions, from incurring further indebtedness if we do not satisfy either a leverage condition or an interest coverage condition. Exceptions to the limitation include, among other things, borrowings of up to \$260 million under existing or future bank credit facilities, non-recourse indebtedness, and indebtedness incurred for the purpose of refinancing or repaying certain existing indebtedness. Under the limitation on restricted payments, we are also prohibited from making restricted payments, aside from certain exceptions, if we do not satisfy either condition. In addition, the amount of restricted payments that we can make is subject to an overall basket limitation, which builds based on, among other things, 50% of consolidated net income from January 1, 2017 forward and 100% of the net cash proceeds from qualified equity offerings. Exceptions to the foregoing limitations on our ability to make restricted payments include, among other things, investments in joint ventures and other investments up to 15% of our consolidated tangible net assets and a general basket of \$15 million. The Notes are guaranteed, on an unsecured basis, jointly and severally, by all of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 17 for information about the guarantees and supplemental financial statement information about our guarantor subsidiaries group and non-guarantor subsidiaries group.

During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased and retired approximately \$4.8 million in face value of the Notes at 101.63% of the face value for a cash payment of approximately \$4.8 million. The Company recognized a loss on early extinguishment of debt of \$0.1 million and wrote off approximately \$46,000 of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs associated with the Notes retired. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company repurchased and retired approximately \$5.0 million in face value of the Notes at 90.25% of the face value for a cash payment of approximately \$4.5 million. The Company recognized a gain on early extinguishment of debt of \$0.4 million and wrote off approximately \$70,000 of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs associated with the Notes retired.

The Company has an unsecured revolving credit facility ("Credit Facility") with a bank group. On August 7, 2019, the Company entered into a Modification Agreement (the "Modification") to its Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. The Modification, among other things, (i) extended the maturity date of the revolving credit facility to March 1, 2021, (ii) decreased (A) the total commitments under the facility to \$130 million from \$200 million and (B) the accordion feature to \$200 million from \$300 million, subject to certain financial conditions, including the availability of bank commitments, (iii) provided for certain adjustments to the borrowing base calculation commencing January 1, 2020; and (iv) revised the covenant limiting restricted payments to provide for basket limitations and net leverage ratio thresholds on the Company's stock repurchases, dividend payments, and repurchases of its Notes, subject to specified exceptions. As of March 31, 2020, we had no borrowings outstanding under the credit facility. Interest is payable monthly and is charged at a rate of 1-month LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 3.00% depending on the Company's leverage ratio as calculated at the end of each fiscal quarter. As of March 31, 2020, the interest rate under the Credit Facility was 3.99%. Pursuant to the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial covenants as defined in the Credit Facility, including (i) a minimum tangible net worth; (ii) maximum leverage ratios; (iii) a minimum liquidity covenant; and (iv) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio based on EBITDA (as detailed in the Credit Facility) to interest incurred or if this test is not met, the Company maintains unrestricted cash equal to not less than the trailing 12 month consolidated interest incurred. As of March 31, 2020, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants.

The Credit Facility, as amended by the Modification, also provides a \$17.5 million sublimit for letters of credit, subject to conditions set forth in the agreement. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company did not have any outstanding letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility.

10. Fair Value Disclosures

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received for selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at measurement date and requires assets and liabilities carried at fair value to be classified and disclosed in the following three categories:

- Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets
- Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are inactive; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets at measurement date
- Level 3 Valuations derived from techniques where one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable in active markets at measurement
 date.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents an estimated fair value of the Company's Notes and Credit Facility. The Notes are classified as Level 2 and primarily reflect estimated prices obtained from outside pricing sources. The Company's Credit Facility is classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

		March 31, 2020				December 31, 2019			
	Carry	ing Amount		Fair Value	Carr	ying Amount	I	air Value	
	(Dollars in thousands)								
7.25% Senior Notes due 2022, net (1)	\$	300,479	\$	266,873	\$	304,832	\$	298,775	
Unsecured revolving credit facility	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	

⁽¹⁾ The carrying value for the Senior Notes, as presented at March 31, 2020, is net of the unamortized discount of \$1.0 million, unamortized premium of \$0.8 million, and unamortized debt issuance costs of \$2.6 million. The carrying value for the Senior Notes, as presented at December 31, 2019, is net of the unamortized discount of \$1.1 million, unamortized premium of \$0.9 million, and unamortized debt issuance costs of \$3.0 million. The unamortized discount, unamortized premium and debt issuance costs are not factored into the estimated fair value.

The Company considers the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, contracts and accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other liabilities to approximate the fair value of these financial instruments based on the short duration between origination of the instruments and their expected realization. The fair value of amounts due from affiliates is not determinable due to the related party nature of such amounts.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Adjustments

Nonfinancial assets and liabilities include items such as real estate inventory and long-lived assets that are measured at cost when acquired and adjusted for impairment to fair value, if deemed necessary. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment to its investment in unconsolidated joint ventures of \$2.3 million and \$0, respectively. The 2020 impairment related to our agreement in principle to sell our interest in our Bedford joint venture to our partner. We are currently in the process of drafting definitive agreements associated with our exit from the joint venture and the sale of our interest for less than its current carrying value. This transaction is expected to close around the end of the 2020 second quarter. The impairment adjustment was made using Level 2 inputs and assumptions. For more information on the investment in unconsolidated joint ventures impairment, please refer to Note 6.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

From time-to-time, the Company is involved in various legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business. These claims and legal proceedings are of a nature that we believe are normal and incidental to a homebuilder. We make provisions for loss contingencies when they are probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Such provisions are assessed at least quarterly and adjusted to reflect the impact of any settlement negotiations, judicial and administrative rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events pertaining to a particular case. During 2019, we recorded litigation reserves totaling \$5.9 million related to ordinary course litigation which developed and became probable and estimable within the 2019 fourth quarter. Further, as a result of the development of the construction defect related claims within the litigation reserve and their impact to the Company's litigation reserve estimates for IBNR future construction defect claims, we recorded an additional \$5.0 million of IBNR construction defect claim reserves resulting in aggregate litigation reserves totaling \$10.9 million as of December 31, 2019. Because the self-insured retention deductibles had been met for each claim covered by the \$5.9 million reserve, and the self-insured retention deductibles are expected to be met for the \$5.0 million IBNR construction defect claim reserves, the Company recorded estimated insurance receivables of \$10.9 million offsetting the related litigation reserves as of December 31, 2019. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, \$4.2 million was paid by insurance related to one claim and the Company also reduced its litigation reserve estimate by \$0.2 million for a separate claim, resulting in a litigation reserve and insurance receivable balance of \$6.5 million at March 31, 2020. Due to the inherent uncertainty and judgement used in these assumptions, our actual costs and related insurance recoveries could differ significantly from amounts currently estimated. Please refer to

As an owner and developer of real estate, the Company is subject to various environmental laws of federal, state and local governments. The Company is not aware of any environmental liability that could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations. However, changes in applicable environmental laws and regulations, the uses and conditions of real estate in the vicinity of the Company's real estate and other environmental conditions of which the Company is unaware with respect to the real estate could result in future environmental liabilities.

The Company has provided credit enhancements in connection with joint venture borrowings in the form of LTV maintenance agreements in order to secure the joint venture's performance under the loans and maintenance of certain LTV ratios. The Company has also entered into agreements with its partners in each of the unconsolidated joint ventures whereby the Company and its partners are apportioned liability under the LTV maintenance agreements according to their respective capital interest. In addition, the agreements provide the Company, to the extent its partner has an unpaid liability under such credit enhancements, the right to receive distributions from the unconsolidated joint venture that would otherwise be made to the partner. However, there is no guarantee that such distributions will be made or will be sufficient to cover the Company's liability under such LTV maintenance agreements. The loans underlying the LTV maintenance agreements include acquisition and development loans, construction revolvers and model home loans, and the agreements remain in force until the loans are satisfied. Due to the nature of the loans, the outstanding balance at any given time is subject to a number of factors including the status of site improvements, the mix of horizontal and vertical development underway, the timing of phase build outs, and the period necessary to complete the escrow process for homebuyers. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$21.9 million and \$28.6 million, respectively, was outstanding under loans that are credit enhanced by the Company through LTV maintenance agreements. Under the terms of the joint venture agreements, the Company's proportionate share of LTV maintenance agreement liabilities was \$4.4 million and \$5.8 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

In addition, the Company has provided completion agreements regarding specific performance for certain projects whereby the Company is required to complete the given project with funds provided by the beneficiary of the agreement. If there are not adequate funds available under the specific project loans, the Company would then be subject to financial liability under such completion agreements. Typically, under such terms of the joint venture agreements, the Company has the right to apportion the respective share of any costs funded under such completion agreements to its partners. However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to recover against our partners for such amounts owed to us under the terms of such joint venture agreements. In connection with joint venture borrowings, the Company also selectively provides (a) an environmental indemnity provided to the lender that holds the lender harmless from and against losses arising from the discharge of hazardous materials from the property and non-compliance with applicable environmental laws; and (b) indemnification of the lender from "bad boy acts" of the unconsolidated entity such as fraud, misrepresentation, misapplication or non-payment of rents, profits, insurance, and condemnation proceeds, waste and mechanic liens, and bankruptcy.

We obtain surety bonds in the normal course of business to ensure completion of certain infrastructure improvements of our projects. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had outstanding surety bonds totaling \$46.3 million and \$47.6 million, respectively. The estimated remaining costs to complete of such improvements as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 were \$24.7 million and \$29.1 million, respectively. The beneficiaries of the bonds are various municipalities, homeowners' associations, and other organizations. In the event that any such surety bond issued by a third party is called because the required improvements are not completed, the Company could be obligated to reimburse the issuer of the bond.

The Company accounts for contracts deemed to contain a lease under ASC 842, *Leases*. At the inception of a lease, or if a lease is subsequently modified, we determine whether the lease is an operating or financing lease. Our lease population is fully comprised of operating leases and includes leases for certain office space and equipment for use in our operations. For all leases with an expected term that exceeds one year, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recorded within our consolidated balance sheets. The depreciable lives of right-of-use assets are limited to the expected term which would include any renewal options we expect to exercise. The exercise of lease renewal options is generally at our discretion and we expect that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced by other leases. Our lease agreements do not contain any residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants. Variable lease payments consist of non-lease services related to the lease. Variable lease payments are excluded from the right-of-use asset and lease liabilities and are expensed as incurred. Right-of-use lease assets are included in other assets and lease liabilities are recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities within the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets and total \$1.7 million and \$1.9 million, respectively, at March 31, 2020 and \$2.0 million and \$2.2 million at December 31, 2019, respectively.

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, lease costs and cash flow information for leases with terms in excess of one year was as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31,				
	2020		2019		
	(Dollars in	thousands	3)		
Lease cost:					
Lease costs included in general and administrative expenses	\$ 311	\$	355		
Lease costs included in real estate inventories	97		162		
Lease costs included in selling and marketing expenses	 39		17		
Net lease cost (1)	\$ 447	\$	534		
Other Information:					
Lease cash flows (included in operating cash flows)(1)	\$ 498	\$	490		

⁽¹⁾ Does not include the cost of short-term leases with terms of less than one year which totaled approximately \$0.1 million and \$0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020, and 2019, respectively, or the benefit from a sublease agreement of one of our office spaces which totaled approximately \$59,000 and \$49,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Future lease payments under our operating leases are as follows (dollars in thousands):

D	Φ	1.004
Remaining for 2020	\$	1,284
2021		629
2022		34
2023		18
2024		2
Thereafter		_
Total lease payments(1)	\$	1,967
Less: Interest(2)		74
Present value of lease liabilities(3)	\$	1,893

(1) Lease payments include options to extend lease terms that are reasonably certain of being exercised.

(3) The weighted average remaining lease term and weighted average incremental borrowing rate used in calculating our lease liabilities were 1.8 years and 3.7%, respectively at March 31, 2020.

During the 2020 first quarter, the Company entered into a binding lease agreement for office space in Northern California that has not commenced. The fair value of lease payments is approximately \$0.9 million, and the lease is expected to commence during the 2020 second quarter.

12. Related Party Transactions

During the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company incurred construction-related costs on behalf of its unconsolidated joint ventures totaling \$1.2 million and \$1.7 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$0.1 million and \$0.2 million, respectively, are included in due from affiliates in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets related to such costs.

The Company has entered into agreements with its unconsolidated joint ventures to provide management services related to the underlying projects (collectively referred to as the "Management Agreements"). Pursuant to the Management Agreements, the Company receives a management fee based on each project's revenues. During the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company earned \$0.4 million and \$0.5 million, respectively, in management fees, which have been recorded as fee building revenues in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$0 and \$0, respectively, of management fees are included in due from affiliates in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

One member of the Company's board of directors beneficially owns more than 10% of the Company's outstanding common stock through an affiliated entity, IHP Capital Partners VI, LLC ("IHP"), and is also affiliated with entities that have investments in two of the Company's unconsolidated joint ventures, TNHC Meridian Investors LLC (which is owner of another entity, TNHC Newport LLC, which entity owned our "Meridian" project) and TNHC Russell Ranch LLC ("Russell Ranch"). The Company's investment in these two joint ventures was \$15.6 million at March 31, 2020 and \$13.7 million at December 31, 2019.

During the 2019 second quarter, the Company entered into a second amendment to the limited liability company agreement of Russell Ranch between the Company and IHP. Prior to the execution of the second amendment, each of IHP and the Company had contributed its maximum capital commitments pursuant to the joint venture agreement. Pursuant to the second amendment, the parties agreed to fund additional required capital in the aggregate amount of approximately \$26 million for certain remaining backbone improvements for the Project (the "Phase 1 Backbone Improvements") as follows: 50% by IHP and 50% by the Company ("Amendment Additional Capital"). The Amendment Additional Capital will be returned to IHP and the Company ahead of any other contributed capital; provided that none of the Amendment Additional Capital accrues a preferred return that base capital contributions are generally afforded under the joint venture agreement. To the extent of overruns on the Phase 1 Backbone Improvements, the Company is required to fund such overrun capital ("TNHC Overrun Capital"); provided that such contributions shall receive capital account credit. Pursuant to the second amendment, the distribution of cash flow under the agreement was amended to provide that Amendment Additional Capital would be returned prior to TNHC Overrun Capital, which would, in turn, be returned ahead of the base capital preferred return and base capital. The Company previously purchased lots from the Russell Ranch joint venture as described below (the "Phase 1 Purchase"). The parties also amended the purchase and sale contract for the Phase 1 Purchase to provide relief from the profit participation provisions of this transaction under certain circumstances.

Our leases do not provide a readily determinable implicit rate. Therefore, we utilized our incremental borrowing rate for such leases to determine the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement date.

TL Fab LP, an affiliate of one of the Company's non-employee directors, was engaged by the Company and some of its unconsolidated joint ventures as a trade contractor to provide metal fabrication services. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company incurred \$0 and \$33,000, respectively, for these services. Of these costs, none was due to TL Fab LP from the Company at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

In its ordinary course of business, the Company enters into agreements to purchase lots from unconsolidated land development joint ventures of which it is a member. In accordance with ASC 360-20, the Company defers its portion of the underlying gain from the joint venture's sale of these lots to the Company. When the Company purchases lots directly from the joint venture, the deferred gain is recorded as a reduction to the Company's land basis on the purchased lots. In this instance, the gain is ultimately recognized when the Company delivers lots to third-party home buyers at the time of the home closing. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$0.2 million and \$0.2 million, respectively, of deferred gain from lot transactions with the TNHC-HW Cannery LLC ("Cannery"), Bedford and Russell Ranch unconsolidated joint ventures remained unrecognized and included as a reduction to land basis in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

The Company's land purchase agreement with the Cannery provides for reimbursements of certain fee credits. The Company was not reimbursed any fee credits from the Cannery during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$15,000 and \$15,000, respectively, in fee credits was due to the Company from the Cannery, which is included in due from affiliates in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

On June 18, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement that effectively transitioned Joseph Davis' role within the Company from that of Chief Investment Officer to that of a non-employee consultant to the Company effective June 26, 2015 ("Transition Date"). As of the Transition Date, Mr. Davis ceased being an employee of the Company and became an independent contractor performing consulting services. For his services, Mr. Davis was compensated \$5,000 per month through June 26, 2019 when his contract was amended to extend its term one year and reduce his scope of services and compensation to \$1,000 per month. At March 31, 2020, no fees were due to Mr. Davis for his consulting services. Additionally, the Company entered into a construction agreement effective September 7, 2017, with The Joseph and Terri Davis Family Trust Dated August 25, 1999 ("Davis Family Trust") of which Joseph Davis is a trustee. The agreement was a fee building contract pursuant to which the Company acted in the capacity of a general contractor to build a single family detached home on land owned by the Davis Family Trust. Construction of the home was completed during the 2019 first quarter. For its services, the Company received a contractor's fee and the Davis Family Trust reimbursed the Company's field overhead costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company billed the Davis Family Trust \$0.5 million, including reimbursable construction costs and the Company's contractor's fees which are included in fee building revenues in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. Contractor's fees comprised \$15,000 of the total billings for the three months ended March 31,2019. The Company recorded \$0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019 for the costs of this fee building revenue which are included in fee building cost of sales in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company was due \$0 from the Davis Family Trust for constr

On February 17, 2017, the Company entered into a consulting agreement that transitioned Mr. Stelmar's role from that of Chief Investment Officer to a non-employee consultant to the Company. While an employee of the Company, Mr. Stelmar served as an employee director of the Company's Board of Directors. The agreement provided that effective upon Mr. Stelmar's termination of employment, he became a non-employee director and received the compensation and was subject to the requirements of a non-employee director pursuant to the Company's policies. For his consulting services, Mr. Stelmar was compensated \$0 and \$18,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, Mr. Stelmar's outstanding restricted stock unit equity award granted in 2016 continued to vest in accordance with its original terms based on his continued provision of consulting services rather than continued employment and fully vested during the 2019 first quarter. Mr. Stelmar's vested stock options remain outstanding based on Mr. Stelmar's continued service as a Board member. The consulting contract expired in August 2019 and was not extended. At March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no fees were due to Mr. Stelmar for his consulting services.

On February 14, 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement that transitioned Thomas Redwitz's role from that of Chief Investment Officer to a non-employee consultant to the Company effective March 1, 2019. For his consulting services, Mr. Redwitz is compensated \$10,000 per month. The agreement originally was set to expire on March 1, 2020 and was extended upon mutual consent of the parties on a month to month basis at the original terms. For the months April 2020 and May 2020, the Company and Mr. Redwitz have agreed to a reduced consulting fee of \$5,000 per month. At March 31, 2020, no fees were due to Mr. Redwitz for his consulting services.

The Company entered into agreements during 2018 and 2017 to purchase land from affiliates of IHP, which owns more than 10% of the Company's outstanding common stock and is affiliated with one member of the Company's board of directors. Certain land takedowns pursuant to these agreements occurred during 2019 or are scheduled to take place during 2020. Descriptions of these agreements and relevant takedown activity are described below.

During 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with an IHP affiliate to purchase lots in Northern California in a phased takedown for a gross purchase price of \$16.1 million with profit participation and master marketing fees due to the seller as outlined in the contract. The Company did not takedown any land pursuant to this contract during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019. At March 31, 2020, the Company has taken down all of the lots and paid \$0.4 million in master marketing fees, and as of December 31, 2019, IHP was no longer affiliated with this development. Also in 2017, the Company contracted to purchase finished lots in Northern California from an IHP affiliate, which agreement included customary profit participation and was structured as an optioned takedown. The total purchase price, including the cost for the finished lot development and the option, was expected to be approximately \$56.3 million, dependent on the timing of takedowns, as well as our obligation to pay certain fees and costs during the option maintenance period. The Company did not takedown any lots pursuant to this agreement during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019. During the 2019 second quarter, an unrelated third party entered into agreements to purchase from the IHP affiliate some of the lots under the Company's option. The Company in turn entered into an arrangement pursuant to which it agreed to purchase such lots on a rolling take down basis from such unrelated third party. The unrelated third party purchased 67% of the lots originally under contract with the IHP affiliate. Following the purchase of the lots by the unrelated third party in 2019, the Company has no remaining lots to purchase from the IHP affiliate. As of March 31, 2020, the Company (i) had no nonrefundable deposits with the IHP affiliate that will be applied to the Company's takedown of lots from the unrelated third party and (ii) has paid (A) \$0.2 million for fees and costs, (B) \$3.0 million in option payments, and (C) \$18.0 million

In the first quarter 2018, the Company entered into an option agreement to purchase lots in phased takedowns with its Bedford joint venture. At the time of the initial agreement in 2018, the Bedford joint venture was affiliated with a former member of the Company's board of directors. As of March 31, 2020, the Company has made a \$1.5 million nonrefundable deposit as consideration for this option, with a portion of the deposit applied to the purchase price across the phases. The gross purchase price of the land was \$10.0 million with profit participation and master marketing fees due to seller as outlined in the contract. During the 2019 third quarter, the Company entered into an amendment to this agreement to reduce the gross purchase price of the land to \$9.3 million. The Company did not take down any of the lots underlying this agreement during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. At March 31, 2020, the Company has taken down all of the contracted lots and the deposit was fully applied to the purchase and has paid \$0.1 million in master marketing fees. During the fourth quarter 2018, the Company entered into a second option agreement with the Bedford joint venture to purchase lots in phased takedowns. The Company made a \$1.4 million nonrefundable deposit as consideration for the option, with a portion of the deposit to be applied to the purchase price across the phases. The gross purchase price of the land is \$10.5 million with profit participation and master marketing fees due to the seller pursuant to the agreement. The Company did not take down any optioned lots during the three months ended March 31, 2019. At March 31, 2020, the Company had taken down approximately 92% of the optioned lots, paid \$0.2 million in master marketing fees, and no deposit remained outstanding.

During April 2020, the Company and its partner in the Bedford joint venture agreed in principle to a sale of our interest in the joint venture to our partner. We are currently in the process of drafting definitive agreements for our exit from the venture, but pursuant to a term sheet outlining the terms of the transaction, we expect to sell our interest for \$5.1 million in cash. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded a \$2.3 million other-than-temporary impairment charge to its investment in the Bedford joint venture representing the sale of its joint venture investment for less than its current carrying value. The sale is expected to close around the end of the 2020 second quarter and the agreement, among other things, is expected to allow for a continuation of the Company's option rights to buy certain lots from the joint venture.

The Company has provided credit enhancements in connection with joint venture borrowings in the form of LTV maintenance agreements in order to secure the joint venture's performance under the loans and maintenance of certain LTV ratios. In addition, the Company has provided completion agreements regarding specific performance for certain projects whereby the Company is required to complete the given project with funds provided by the beneficiary of the agreement. For more information regarding these agreements please refer to Note 11.

13. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company's 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "2014 Incentive Plan"), was adopted by our board of directors in January 2014. The 2014 Incentive Plan provides for the grant of equity-based awards, including options to purchase shares of common stock, stock appreciation rights, restricted and unrestricted stock awards, restricted stock units and performance awards. The 2014 Incentive Plan will automatically expire on the tenth anniversary of its effective date.

The number of shares of our common stock authorized to be issued under the 2014 Incentive Plan is 1,644,875 shares. To the extent that shares of the Company's common stock subject to an outstanding award granted under the 2014 Incentive Plan or any predecessor plan are not issued or delivered by reason of the expiration, termination, cancellation or forfeiture of such award or the settlement of such award in cash, then such shares of common stock generally shall again be available under the 2014 Incentive Plan.

At our 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders on May 24, 2016, our shareholders approved the Company's 2016 Incentive Award Plan (the "2016 Incentive Plan"). The 2016 Incentive Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units and other stock- or cash-based awards. Non-employee directors of the Company and employees and consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries are eligible to receive awards under the 2016 Incentive Plan. On May 22, 2018, our shareholders approved the amended and restated 2016 Incentive Plan which increased the number of shares authorized for issuance under the plan from 800,000 to 2,100,000 shares. The amended and restated 2016 Incentive Plan will expire on April 4, 2028.

The Company has issued stock option and restricted stock unit awards under the 2014 Incentive Plan and stock option, restricted stock unit awards and performance share unit awards under the 2016 Incentive Plan. As of March 31, 2020, 61,443 shares remain available for grant under the 2014 Incentive Plan and 532,050 shares remain available for grant under the 2016 Incentive Plan. The exercise price of stock-based awards may not be less than the market value of the Company's common stock on the date of grant. The fair value for stock options is established at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for time-based vesting awards. The Company's stock option, restricted stock unit awards, and performance share unit awards typically vest over a one year to three years period and the stock options expire ten years from the date of grant.

A summary of the Company's common stock option activity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is presented below:

			Three Months E	nded March 31,		
	20	20		20	19	
			Weighted-			Weighted-
	Number of Shares		erage Exercise rice per Share	Number of Shares		erage Exercise rice per Share
Outstanding Stock Option Activity						
Outstanding, beginning of period	1,068,017	\$	9.78	821,470	\$	11.00
Granted	161,479	\$	5.36	249,283	\$	5.76
Exercised	_	\$	_	_	\$	_
Forfeited		\$	_		\$	_
Outstanding, end of period	1,229,496	\$	9.20	1,070,753	\$	9.78
Exercisable, end of period	901,829	\$	10.52	821,470	\$	11.00

A summary of the Company's restricted stock unit activity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is presented below:

Number of Shares Date Fair Value per Share Number of Shares I Nu	Three Months Ended March 31,
Restricted Stock Unit Activity Number of Shares II Outstanding, beginning of period 592,116 \$ 6.36 469,227 \$ 67 anted \$ 5241,556 \$ 5.36 135,473 \$ 7 control of Shares \$ 7 control of Shares	2020 2019
Restricted Stock Unit Activity Outstanding, beginning of period 592,116 \$ 6.36 469,227 \$ Granted 241,556 \$ 5.36 135,473 \$ Vested (152,177) \$ 9.45 (229,545) \$ Forfeited (428) \$ 11.68 (46,571) \$	Average Grant- Date Fair Value Average Grant- Date Fair Value
Outstanding, beginning of period 592,116 \$ 6.36 469,227 \$ Granted 241,556 \$ 5.36 135,473 \$ Vested (152,177) \$ 9.45 (229,545) \$ Forfeited (428) \$ 11.68 246,571) \$	Number of Shares per Share Number of Shares per Share
Granted 241,556 \$ 5.36 135,473 \$ Vested (152,177) \$ 9.45 (229,545) \$ Forfeited (428) \$ 11.68 (46,571) \$	
Vested (152,177) \$ 9.45 (229,545) \$ Forfeited (428) \$ 11.68 (46,571) \$	592,116 \$ 6.36 469,227 \$ 10.75
Forfeited (428) \$ 11.68 (46,571) \$	241,556 \$ 5.36 135,473 \$ 5.76
(01.075	(152,177) \$ 9.45 (229,545) \$ 10.60
Outstanding end of period 681,067 \$ 5.32 328,584 \$	(428) \$ 11.68 (46,571) \$ 10.89
0, 110 1	<u>681,067</u> \$ 5.32 <u>328,584</u> \$ 8.78

A summary of the Company's performance share unit activity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is presented below:

		Three Months E	nded March 31,	
	20)20	20	19
				Weighted-
		Weighted-Average		Average Grant-
		Grant-Date Fair		Date Fair Value
	Number of Shares	Value per Share	Number of Shares	per Share
Performance Share Unit Activity				
Outstanding, beginning of period	_	\$	125,422	\$ 11.68
Granted (at target)	_	\$	_	\$
Vested	_	\$	_	\$ —
Forfeited		\$	(26,882)	\$ 11.68
Outstanding, end of period (at target)		\$ —	98,540	\$ 11.68

The expense related to the Company's stock-based compensation programs, included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations, was as follows:

	Th	ree Months E	nded Mar	ch 31,
		2020	2	019
		(Dollars in	thousands)
Expense related to:				
Stock options	\$	64	\$	22
Restricted stock units and performance share units		525		544
	\$	589	\$	566

The following table presents details of the assumptions used to calculate the weighted-average grant date fair value of common stock options granted by the Company in each year:

	Three M	Ionths Ended	March 31,
	2020		2019
Expected term (in years)		6.0	6.0
Expected volatility		41.8%	39.9%
Risk-free interest rate		1.4%	2.5%
Expected dividends		_	_
Weighted-average grant date fair value per share	\$	2.24 \$	2.43

We used the "simplified method" to establish the expected term of the common stock options granted by the Company. Our restricted stock unit awards and performance share unit awards are valued based on the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant. The number of performance share units that would vest ranged from 50%-150% of the target amount awarded based on actual cumulative earnings per share and return on equity growth from 2018-2019, subject to initial achievement of minimum thresholds. We evaluated the probability of achieving the performance targets established under each of the outstanding performance share unit awards quarterly during 2018 and 2019 and estimated the number of underlying units that were probable of being issued. Compensation expense for restricted stock unit and performance share unit awards was being recognized using the straight-line method over the requisite service period, subject to cumulative catch-up adjustments required as a result of changes in the number shares probable of being issued for performance share unit awards. Forfeitures are recognized in compensation cost during the period that the award forfeiture occurs. For the three months ended March 31, 2019, no expense was recognized for our performance share units. At December 31, 2019, the performance targets associated with the outstanding performance share unit awards were not met and all outstanding awards were forfeited.

At March 31, 2020, the amount of unearned stock-based compensation currently estimated to be expensed through 2023 is \$3.6 million. The weighted-average period over which the unearned stock-based compensation is expected to be recognized is 2.3 years. If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested awards, the Company may be required to accelerate, increase or cancel any remaining unearned stock-based compensation expense.

14. Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of \$9.9 million and \$0.7 million, respectively. The Company's effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2020, differs from the federal statutory rate due to discrete items, state income tax rates and tax credits for energy efficient homes. The 2020 first quarter discrete items totaled an \$8.1 million benefit, \$5.8 million of which related to the \$14.0 million project abandonment costs recorded during the quarter and a \$2.1 million benefit related to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") signed into law on March 27, 2020. For more information on the abandonment costs, please refer to Note 4. The CARES Act allows companies to carry back net operating losses generated in 2018 through 2020 for five years. The Company recognized a \$2.1 million discrete benefit related to the remeasurement of deferred tax assets originally valued at a 21% federal statutory tax rate which are now available to be carried back to tax years with a 35% federal statutory rate. The Company's effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2019 differs from the federal statutory tax rates due to state income taxes, estimated deduction limitations for executive compensation and discrete items. The provision for discrete items totaled \$0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and was primarily related to stock compensation and state income tax rate changes.

The CARES Act includes various income and payroll tax provisions that we are in the process of analyzing to determine the financial impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements. Aside from the carry back provision discussed above, the Company does not believe any other aspects of the CARES Act were material to the Company's benefit for income taxes during the 2020 first quarter.

15. Segment Information

The Company's operations are organized into three reportable segments: two homebuilding segments (Arizona and California) and fee building. In determining the most appropriate reportable segments, we considered similar economic and other characteristics, including product types, average selling prices, gross margins, production processes, suppliers, subcontractors, regulatory environments, land position, and underlying demand and supply in accordance with ASC 280. Our California homebuilding reportable segment aggregates the Southern California and Northern California homebuilding operating segments.

Our homebuilding operations acquire and develop land and construct and sell single-family attached and detached homes and may sell land. Our fee building operations build homes and manage construction and sales related activities on behalf of third-party property owners and our joint ventures. In addition, our corporate operations develop and implement strategic initiatives and support our operating segments by centralizing key administrative functions such as accounting, finance and treasury, information technology, insurance and risk management, litigation, marketing and human resources. A portion of the expenses incurred by corporate are allocated to the fee building segment primarily based on its respective percentage of revenues and to each homebuilding segment based on its respective investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures and real estate inventories balances. The assets of our fee building segment primarily consist of cash, restricted cash and contracts and accounts receivable. The majority of our corporate personnel and resources are primarily dedicated to activities relating to our homebuilding segment, and, therefore, the balance of any unallocated corporate expenses are allocated within our homebuilding reportable segments.

The reportable segments follow the same accounting policies as our consolidated financial statements described in Note 1. Operational results of each reportable segment are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have been achieved had the reportable segment been an independent, stand-alone entity during the periods presented.

Financial information relating to reportable segments was as follows:

	<u></u>	Three Months E	nded M	arch 31,
	<u></u>	2020		2019
		(Dollars in	housanc	ls)
Homebuilding revenues:				
California home sales	\$	83,280	\$	83,332
California land sales		147		_
Arizona home sales		12,379		15,854
Total homebuilding revenues		95,806		99,186
Fee building revenues, including management fees		36,227		19,662
Total revenues	<u>\$</u>	132,033	\$	118,848
Homebuilding pretax loss:				
California	\$	(4,451)	\$	(2,567)
Arizona		(14,692)		(478)
Total homebuilding loss		(19,143)		(3,045)
Fee building pretax income, including management fees		730		394
Total loss	<u>\$</u>	(18,413)	\$	(2,651)
		March 31, 2020	De	ecember 31, 2019
		(Dollars in	housand	ds)
Homebuilding assets:				
California	\$	398,714	\$	416,179
Arizona		61,519		82,234
Total homebuilding assets		460,233		498,413
Fee building assets		12,636		11,193
Corporate unallocated assets	<u> </u>	107,067		93,583
Total assets	\$	579,936	\$	603,189

16. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

The following table presents certain supplemental cash flow information:

	 Three Months En	ided March 31,
	2020	2019
	 (Dollars in t	housands)
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information		
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized	\$ _	\$
Income taxes paid	\$ _	\$

17. Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company's Notes are guaranteed, on an unsecured basis, jointly and severally, by all of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries (collectively, the "Guarantors"). The guarantees are full and unconditional. The Indenture governing the Notes provides that the guarantees of a Guarantor will be automatically and unconditionally released and discharged: (1) upon any sale, transfer, exchange or other disposition (by merger, consolidation or otherwise) of all of the equity interests of such Guarantor after which the applicable Guarantor is no longer a "Restricted Subsidiary" (as defined in the Indenture), which sale, transfer, exchange or other disposition is made in compliance with applicable provisions of the Indenture; (2) upon the proper designation of such Guarantor as an "Unrestricted Subsidiary" (as defined in the Indenture), in accordance with the Indenture; (3) upon request of the Company and certification in an officers' certificate provided to the trustee that the applicable Guarantor has become an "Immaterial Subsidiary" (as defined in the indenture), so long as such Guarantor would not otherwise be required to provide a guarantee pursuant to the Indenture; provided that, if immediately after giving effect to such release the consolidated tangible assets of all Immaterial Subsidiaries that are not Guarantors would exceed 5.0% of consolidated tangible assets, no such release shall occur, (4) if the Company exercises its legal defeasance option or covenant defeasance option under the Indenture or if the obligations of the Company and the Guarantors are discharged in compliance with applicable provisions of the Indenture, upon such exercise or discharge; (5) unless a default has occurred and is continuing, upon the release or discharge of such Guarantor from its guarantee of any indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company and the Guarantors so long as such Guarantor would not then otherwise be required to provide a guarantee pursuant to the Indenture; or (6) upon the full satisfaction of the Company's obligations under the Indenture; provided that in each case if such Guarantor has incurred any indebtedness in reliance on its status as a Guarantor in compliance with applicable provisions of the Indenture, such Guarantor's obligations under such indebtedness, as the case may be, so incurred are satisfied in full and discharged or are otherwise permitted to be incurred by a Restricted Subsidiary (other than a Guarantor) in compliance with applicable provisions of the Indenture. The Company has determined that separate, full financial statements of the Guarantors would not be material to investors and, accordingly, supplemental financial information for the guarantors is presented.

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

						March 31, 2020				
				Guarantor		Non-Guarantor		Consolidating		Consolidated
		NWHM		Subsidiaries	<u></u>	Subsidiaries		Adjustments		NWHM
A					(De	ollars in thousands)				
Assets	\$	(0, (02	d.	10.005	d.	175	e.		e.	07.072
Cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash	\$	69,603	\$	18,085 424	\$	1/5	\$		\$	87,863 424
Contracts and accounts receivable		11		:= :		_		(000)		-= -
				16,514				(888)		15,637
Intercompany receivables		262,949				_		(262,949)		
Due from affiliates				108				_		108
Real estate inventories		_		398,973		_		_		398,973
Investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint										
ventures				29,237		_		(151.2(0)		29,237
Investment in subsidiaries		171,369		_		_		(171,369)		_
Deferred tax asset, net		16,060		529						16,589
Other assets		20,324		10,754		27				31,105
Total assets	\$	540,316	\$	474,624	\$	202	\$	(435,206)	\$	579,936
Liabilities and equity										
Accounts payable	\$	47	\$	20,991	\$	_	\$	_	\$	21,038
Accrued expenses and other liabilities		17,566		19,368		26		(877)		36,083
Intercompany payables		_		262,949		_		(262,949)		_
Due to affiliates		_		11		_		(11)		_
Senior notes, net		300,479		_		_				300,479
Total liabilities	-	318,092	<u> </u>	303,319		26	_	(263,837)	_	357,600
Total stockholders' equity		222,224		171,305		64		(171,369)		222,224
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary		<i>'</i> —		_		112		_		112
Total equity		222,224	_	171,305		176		(171,369)		222,336
Total liabilities and equity	\$	540,316	\$	474,624	\$	202	\$	(435,206)	\$	579,936

					Ι	December 31, 2019				
		NWHM		Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Consolidating Adjustments		Consolidated NWHM
					(D	ollars in thousands)		-		
Assets										
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	66,166	\$	12,978	\$	170	\$	_	\$	79,314
Restricted cash		_		117		_		_		117
Contracts and accounts receivable		3		16,403		_		(424)		15,982
Intercompany receivables		258,372		_		_		(258,372)		_
Due from affiliates		_		238		_		_		238
Real estate inventories		_		433,938		_		_		433,938
Investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint										
ventures		_		30,217		_		_		30,217
Investment in subsidiaries		198,448		_		_		(198,448)		_
Deferred tax asset, net		17,003		500		_		_		17,503
Other assets		9,505		16,340		35		_		25,880
Total assets	\$	549,497	\$	510,731	\$	205	\$	(457,244)	\$	603,189
Liabilities and equity										
Accounts payable	\$	68	\$	24,973	\$	3	\$		\$	25,044
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	Ψ	11.950	Ψ	28,999	Ψ	26	Ψ	(421)	Ψ	40,554
Intercompany payables		11,750		258,372				(258,372)		
Due to affiliates		_		3		_		(3)		_
Senior notes, net		304,832		_		_		(5)		304,832
Total liabilities		316,850	_	312,347	_	29	_	(258,796)	_	370,430
Total stockholders' equity		232,647	_	198,384	_	64	_	(198,448)	_	232,647
Non-controlling interest in subsidiary		232,047		170,304		112		(170,440)		112
,		232,647		198,384		176		(198,448)		232,759
Total equity	•		•		•	205	•		•	
Total liabilities and equity	\$	549,497	\$	510,731	\$	205	\$	(457,244)	\$	603,189

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating Consolidated NWHM Adjustments NWHM Subsidiaries Subsidiaries (Dollars in thousands) Revenues: Home sales \$ \$ 95,659 \$ \$ \$ 95,659 147 147 Land sales Fee building 36,227 36,227 132,033 132,033 Cost of Sales: Home sales 84,722 84,722 Land sales 147 147 Fee building 35,497 35,497 120,366 120,366 Gross Margin: 10,937 10,937 Home sales Land sales 730 730 Fee building 11,667 11,667 Selling and marketing expenses (7,466)(7,466) General and administrative expenses 221 (6,244)(6,023) Equity in net loss of unconsolidated joint ventures (1,937)(1,937)Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (10,530)10,530 Interest expense (718)(718)Project abandonment costs (14,036) (14,036) (123) Loss on early extinguishment of debt (123)Other income (expense), net 193 30 223 Pretax loss (10,239)(18,704)10,530 (18,413)Benefit for income taxes 1,763 8,174 9,937 Net loss (8,476)(10,530)10,530 (8,476) Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary Net loss attributable to The New Home Company (8,476)(10,530)10,530 (8,476) Inc.

Thre	e Months	Ended	March 31,	, 2019

	NWHM		Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Consolidating Adjustments	Consolidated NWHM
				(1	Dollars in thousands)		
Revenues:							
Home sales	\$ -	- \$,	\$	_	\$	\$ 99,186
Fee building		_	19,662				19,662
		_	118,848				118,848
Cost of Sales:							
Home sales	_	-	86,569		_	_	86,569
Fee building		_	19,268				19,268
	_	-	105,837		_	_	105,837
Gross Margin:							
Home sales	_		12,617		_	_	12,617
Fee building	_		394		_	_	394
100 bunding		_	13,011		_		13,011
Selling and marketing expenses	_	-	(8,679)		_	_	(8,679)
General and administrative expenses	(56)	6)	(6,825)		_	_	(7,391)
Equity in net income of unconsolidated joint ventures	_	-	184		_	_	184
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries	(1,712	2)	_		_	1,712	_
Gain on early extinguishment of debt	41′	7	_		_	_	417
Project abandonment costs	_	-	(5)		_	_	(5)
Other income (expense), net	(62	2)	(126)		_	_	(188)
Pretax loss	(1,92)	3)	(2,440)		_	1,712	(2,651)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes	(64	l)	728		_	_	664
Net loss	(1,98'	7)	(1,712)		_	1,712	(1,987)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest in							
subsidiary	_	-	_		_	_	_
Net loss attributable to The New Home Company							
Inc.	\$ (1,98)	() \$	(1,712)	\$		\$ 1,712	\$ (1,987)

SUPPLEMENTAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

			Three	Mon	ths Ended March 31	l, 202	20		
			Guarantor	ľ	Non-Guarantor		Consolidating		Consolidated
	NWH	М	Subsidiaries		Subsidiaries		Adjustments		NWHM
				(Do	llars in thousands)				
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	\$	(5,549)	\$ 22,978	\$	5	\$	(133)	\$	17,301
Investing activities:									
Purchases of property and equipment		(68)	(57)		_		_		(125)
Contributions and advances to unconsolidated joint									
ventures		_	(2,057)		_		_		(2,057)
Contributions to subsidiaries from corporate		(21,800)	_		_		21,800		_
Distributions of capital from subsidiaries to corporate		38,217	_		_		(38,217)		_
Distributions of capital and repayment of advances									
from unconsolidated joint ventures		_	1,100		_		_		1,100
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	\$	16,349	\$ (1,014)	\$	_	\$	(16,417)	\$	(1,082)
Financing activities:									
Repurchase of senior notes		(4,827)	_		_		_		(4,827)
Contributions to subsidiaries from corporate		_	21,800		_		(21,800)		_
Distributions to corporate from subsidiaries		_	(38,350)		_		38,350		_
Repurchases of common stock		(2,233)	_		_		_		(2,233)
Tax withholding paid on behalf of employees for stock									
awards		(303)	 						(303)
Net cash used in financing activities	\$	(7,363)	\$ (16,550)	\$	<u> </u>	\$	16,550	\$	(7,363)
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted									
cash		3,437	5,414		5		_		8,856
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash – beginning									
of period		66,166	 13,095		170				79,431
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of						_		_	
period	\$	69,603	\$ 18,509	\$	175	\$		\$	88,287

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2019									
			Guarantor		Non-Guarantor		Consolidating		Consolidated	
	NWHM		Subsidiaries		Subsidiaries		Adjustments		NWHM	
	-			(L	Oollars in thousands)					
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	\$ (14,259)	\$	2,035	\$	(8)	\$		\$	(12,232)	
Investing activities:										
Purchases of property and equipment	_		(5)		_		_		(5)	
Contributions and advances to unconsolidated joint										
ventures	_		(1,335)		_		_		(1,335)	
Contributions to subsidiaries from corporate	(46,000)		_		_		46,000		_	
Distributions of capital from subsidiaries to corporate	39,000		_		_		(39,000)		_	
Distributions of capital and repayment of advances										
from unconsolidated joint ventures			2,562	_					2,562	
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities	\$ (7,000)	\$	1,222	\$		\$	7,000	\$	1,222	
Financing activities:										
Borrowings from credit facility	30,000		_		_		_		30,000	
Repayments of credit facility	(13,500)		_		_		_		(13,500)	
Repurchase of senior notes	(4,512)		_		_		_		(4,512)	
Contributions to subsidiaries from corporate	_		46,000		_		(46,000)		_	
Distributions to corporate from subsidiaries	_		(39,000)		_		39,000		_	
Repurchases of common stock	(1,042)		_		_		_		(1,042)	
Tax withholding paid on behalf of employees for stock										
awards	(488)								(488)	
Net cash provided by financing activities	\$ 10,458	\$	7,000	\$	<u> </u>	\$	(7,000)	\$	10,458	
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and										
restricted cash	(10,801)		10,257		(8)		_		(552)	
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash – beginning										
of period	28,877		13,518		147				42,542	
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of			22.555	.		•		Φ.	44.000	
period	\$ 18,076	\$	23,775	\$	139	\$		\$	41,990	

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). All statements contained in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q other than statements of historical fact, including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, our business strategy and plans, our objectives for future operations, and potential adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are frequently accompanied by words such as "believe," "may," "will," "estimate," "continue," "anticipate," "intend," "expect," "goal," "plan," "could," "can," "might," "should," and similar expressions. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of operations, business strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives, financial needs, and potential adverse impacts due to COVID-19.

These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, including those described in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" and Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 and Part I, Item 2, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of this quarterly report on 10-Q. The following factors, among others, may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

On March 11, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic. We are uncertain of the full magnitude or duration of the business and economic impacts resulting from the measures enacted to contain this outbreak as the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. Management is actively monitoring the situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, customers, industry, and workforce; however, the Company is not able to estimate all the effects the COVID-19 outbreak will have on its results of operations, financial condition or liquidity for the year-ended December 31, 2020 given the rapid evolution of this outbreak and related containment responses. In addition to the following factors, reference is made to Part II, Item 1A of this this quarterly report on Form 10-O for a discussion of material changes from the risk factors set forth in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

- · Risks related to our business, including among other things:
 - our geographic concentration primarily in California and the availability of land to acquire and our ability to acquire such land on favorable terms or at all;
 - the cyclical nature of the homebuilding industry which is affected by general economic real estate and other business conditions;
 - the illiquid nature of real estate investments and the inventory risks related to declines in value of such investments which may result in significant impairment charges;
 - our ability to execute our business strategies is uncertain;
 - a reduction in our sales absorption levels may force us to incur and absorb additional community-level costs;
 - shortages of or increased prices for labor, land or raw materials used in housing construction;
 - availability and skill of subcontractors at reasonable rates;
 - construction defect, product liability, warranty, and personal injury claims, including the cost and availability of insurance;
 - the degree and nature of our competition;
 - · inefficient or ineffective allocation of capital could adversely affect or operations and/or stockholder value if expected benefits are not realized;
 - delays in the development of communities;
 - increases in our cancellation rate;
 - a large proportion of our fee building revenue being dependent upon one customer;
 - employment-related liabilities with respect to our contractors' employees;
 - increased costs, delays in land development or home construction and reduced consumer demand resulting from adverse weather conditions or other events outside our control;
 - increased cost and reduced consumer demand resulting from power, water and other natural resource shortages or price increases;
 - \circ $\;$ because of the seasonal nature of our business, our quarterly operating results fluctuate;
 - we may be unable to obtain suitable bonding for the development of our housing projects;
 - inflation could adversely affect our business and financial results;
 - a major health and safety incident relating to our business could be costly in terms of potential liabilities and reputational damage;
 - negative publicity or poor relations with the residents of our communities could negatively impact sales, which could cause our revenues or results of operations to decline; and
 - failure to comply with privacy laws or information systems interruption or breach in security that releases personal identifying information or other confidential information.

40

Table of Contents

- Risks related to laws and regulations, including among other things:
 - mortgage financing, as well as our customer's ability to obtain such financing, interest rate increases or changes in federal lending programs;
 - changes in tax laws can increase the after-tax cost of owning a home, and further tax law changes or government fees could adversely affect demand for the homes we build, increase our costs, or negatively affect our operating results;
 - we may not be able to generate sufficient taxable income to fully realize our net deferred tax asset;
 - new and existing laws and regulations, including environmental laws and regulations, or other governmental actions may increase our expenses, limit the number of homes that we can build or delay the completion of our projects or otherwise negatively impact our operations;
 - changes in global or regional climate conditions and legislation relating to energy and climate change could increase our costs to construct homes;
- Risks related to financing and indebtedness, including among other things:
 - difficulty in obtaining sufficient capital could prevent us from acquiring land for our developments or increase costs and delays in the completion of our development projects;
 - our level of indebtedness may adversely affect our financial position and prevent us from fulfilling our debt obligations, and we may incur additional debt in the future.
 - the significant amount and illiquid nature of our joint venture partnerships, in which we have less than a controlling interest;
 - our current financing arrangements contain and our future financing arrangements will likely contain restrictive covenants related to our operations;

- a breach of the covenants under the Indenture or any of the other agreements governing our indebtedness could result in an event of default under the Indenture
 or other such agreements;
- potential future downgrades of our credit ratings could adversely affect our access to capital and could otherwise have a material adverse effect on us;
- interest expense on debt we incur may limit our cash available to fund our growth strategies;
- we may be unable to repurchase the Notes upon a change of control as required by the Indenture;
- Risks related to our organization and structure, including among other things:
 - our dependence on our key personnel;
 - the potential costly impact termination of employment agreements with members of our management that may prevent a change in control of the Company;
 - our charter and bylaws could prevent a third party from acquiring us or limit the price that investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock;
- · Risks related to ownership of our common stock, including among other things:
 - that we are eligible to take advantage of reduced disclosure and governance requirements because of our status as a smaller reporting company;
 - the price of our common stock is subject to volatility and our trading volume is relatively low;
 - if securities or industry analysts do not publish, or cease publishing, research or reports about us, our business or our market, or if they change their recommendations regarding our common stock adversely, our stock price and trading volume could decline;
 - we do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future;
 - o certain stockholders have rights to cause our Company to undertake securities offerings;
 - our senior notes rank senior to our common stock upon bankruptcy or liquidation;
 - · certain large stockholders own a significant percentage of our shares and exert significant influence over us;
 - there is no assurance that the existence of a stock repurchase plan will enhance shareholder value;
 - o non-U.S. holders of our common stock may be subject to United States income tax on gain realized on the sale of disposition of such shares.

Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks emerge from time to time, such as COVID-19. It is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may make. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the future events and trends discussed in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q may not occur and actual results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q speak only as of the date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, and we undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release any revision to these forward-looking statements, except as required by law. Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.

41

Table of Contents

Non-GAAP Measures

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q includes certain non-GAAP measures, including Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage, ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total interest incurred, net debt, ratio of net debt-to-capital, adjusted net loss, adjusted net loss per diluted share, general and administrative costs excluding severance charges, general and administrative costs excluding severance charges, selling, marketing and general and administrative costs excluding severance charges as a percentage of home sales revenue, adjusted homebuilding gross margin (or homebuilding gross margin before interest in cost of home sales) and adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage. For a reconciliation of adjusted homebuilding gross margin (or homebuilding gross margin before interest in cost of home sales) and adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage to the comparable GAAP measures please see "--- Results of Operations - Homebuilding Gross Margin." For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA adjusted EBITDA margin percentage, and the ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total interest incurred to the comparable GAAP measures please see "--- Selected Financial Information." For a reconciliation of net debt and ratio of net debt-to-capital to the comparable GAAP measures, please see "--- Liquidity and Capital Resources - Debt-to-Capital Ratios." For a reconciliation of adjusted net loss and adjusted net loss per diluted share to the comparable GAAP measure, please see "--- Overview." For a reconciliation of general and administrative costs excluding severance charges as a percentage of homes sales revenue, selling, marketing and general and administrative expenses excluding severance charges and selling, marketing and general and administrative expenses excluding severance charges and selling, marketing and general and administrative expenses excluding severance charges as a percentage of home sales revenue, please see "--- Results of Operations -- Selling, General and Administrative Expenses."

42

Table of Contents

Selected Financial Information

	Three 1	Three Months Ended March 31,			
	2020		2019		
	(1)	(Dollars in thousands)			
Revenues:					
Home sales	\$	95,659 \$	99,186		
Land sales		147	_		
Fee building, including management fees		36,227	19,662		
		132,033	118,848		
Cost of Sales:					
Home sales		84,722	86,569		
Land sales		147	_		
Fee building		35,497	19,268		
		120,366	105,837		
Gross Margin:					
Home sales		10,937	12,617		
Land sales		_	_		
Fee building		730	394		

		11,667	13,011
Home sales gross margin		11.4%	12.7%
Land sales gross margin		%	N/A
Fee building gross margin		2.0%	2.0%
Selling and marketing expenses		(7,466)	(8,679)
General and administrative expenses			
1		(6,023)	(7,391)
Equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures		(1,937)	184
Interest expense		(718)	
Project abandonment costs		(14,036)	(5)
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt		(123)	417
Other income (expense), net		223	(188)
Pretax loss		(18,413)	(2,651)
Benefit for income taxes		9,937	664
Net loss		(8,476)	(1,987)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest			<u> </u>
Net loss attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	<u>\$</u>	(8,476) \$	(1,987)
Interest incurred	\$	6,380 \$	7,761
Adjusted EBITDA(1)	\$	6,981 \$	6,875
Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage(1)		5.3%	5.8%

	LTM(2) Ended March 31,				
	 2020		2019		
Interest incurred	\$ 27,438	\$	29,422		
Adjusted EBITDA(1)	\$ 41,536	\$	42,011		
Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage (1)	6.1%		6.3%		
Ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total interest incurred (1)	1.5x		1.4x		

(1) Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage and ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total interest incurred are non-GAAP measures. Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage is calculated as a percentage of total revenue. Management believes that Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP measure, assists investors in understanding and comparing the operating characteristics of homebuilding activities by eliminating many of the differences in companies' respective capitalization, interest costs, tax position, inventory impairments and other non-recurring items. Due to the significance of the GAAP components excluded, Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to net income (loss), cash flows from operations or any other performance measure prescribed by GAAP. The table below reconciles net loss, calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, to Adjusted EBITDA.

43

Table of Contents

	Three Months Ended March 31,					LTM(2) Ended March 31,		
		2020		2019		2020		2019
		(Dollars in t	thousar	nds)		,		
Net loss	\$	(8,476)	\$	(1,987)	\$	(14,490)	\$	(15,566)
Add:								
Interest amortized to cost of sales (excluding amounts included in impairment charges) and interest								
expensed (3)		6,864		4,852		29,246		20,766
Benefit for income taxes		(9,937)		(664)		(13,088)		(5,879)
Depreciation and amortization		1,845		2,656		8,146		8,265
Amortization of stock-based compensation		589		566		2,283		2,814
Cash distributions of income from unconsolidated joint ventures		_		260		114		260
Severance charges		_		1,788		_		1,788
Noncash inventory impairments and abandonments		14,036		5		24,325		10,176
Less:								
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt		123		(417)		(624)		(417)
Equity in net (income) loss of unconsolidated joint ventures		1,937		(184)		5,624		19,804
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	6,981	\$	6,875	\$	41,536	\$	42,011
Total Revenue	\$	132,033	\$	118,848	\$	682,534	\$	663,183
Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage		5.3%		5.8%		6.1%		6.3%
Interest incurred	\$	6,380	\$	7,761	\$	27,438	\$	29,422
Ratio of Adjusted LTM(2) EBITDA to total interest incurred						1.5x		1.4x

(2) "LTM" indicates amounts for the trailing 12 months.

Due to an inadvertent oversight in prior periods, interest amortized to certain inventory impairment charges and to equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures was duplicated in the Adjusted EBITDA calculation. The prior periods have been restated to correct this duplication.

44

Table of Contents

Overview

The 2020 first quarter was an unprecedented time for our nation and industry. While the Company is finding ways to continue its operations in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic, our first order of business remains the health and safety of our employees, trade partners and home buyers. The Company has been vigilant in its response to the virus' outbreak and has implemented policies and practices that adhere to the guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC") and government and public health agencies to combat its spread. Although the road ahead is uncertain, we remain confident in the resiliency of our industry and the talented people of our organization to adjust to this new reality.

While the Company experienced a successful start to the year, demand trends softened in March as we began to experience the negative impact stemming from the

COVID-19 pandemic. Year-over-year orders for January and February increased 32% and 82%, respectively, before declining 28% for the month of March. However, net new orders were up 18% overall for the first quarter, as lower interest rates continued to spur buyer demand, and our average selling communities increased 5%. We opened three new communities during the 2020 first quarter, one of which was within our entry level category and offered base pricing under \$400,000, and the other two communities within our second move-up category. Demand during the 2020 first quarter was strongest at our more affordable, entry level communities where the monthly absorption rate increased to 2.7 for the quarter compared to the Company average of 2.0. The shift to more affordable product with quicker build cycles and shorter backlog periods drove our backlog conversion rate to 72% for the 2020 first quarter as compared to 52% in the prior year period which contributed to an 8% increase in new homes delivered. However, home sales revenue decreased 4% due to an 11% decrease in average selling price, which is a result of the Company's strategic shift to more affordable product.

Total revenues for the 2020 first quarter were \$132.0 million as compared to \$118.8 million in the prior year period. The Company reported a net loss of \$8.5 million, or (\$0.42) per diluted share for the 2020 first quarter, compared to a net loss of \$2.0 million, or (\$0.10) per diluted share in the prior year period. The higher year-over-year net loss was primarily attributable to a \$14.0 million pretax project abandonment charge and a \$2.3 million impairment charge related to the anticipated sale of our membership interest in a land development joint venture in Southern California that is expected to be finalized and closed in the 2020 second quarter. These costs were partially offset by a 210 basis point improvement in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of home sales revenue and a \$9.3 million increase in income tax benefit. Adjusted net loss for the 2020 first quarter was \$1.1 million* or (\$0.05)* per diluted share, compared to an adjusted net loss of \$0.8 million*, or (\$0.04)* per diluted share for the 2019 first quarter.

The Company generated \$17.3 million in operating cash flows during the 2020 first quarter and ended the quarter with \$87.9 million in cash and cash equivalents, no borrowings outstanding under its revolving credit facility, and \$300.5 million in senior notes which mature on April 1, 2022. At March 31, 2020, the Company had a debt-to-capital ratio of 57.5% and a net debt-to-capital ratio of 48.8%*. During the 2020 first quarter, the Company repurchased and retired \$4.8 million of its 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 and recognized a \$0.1 million loss on the early extinguishment of debt. Also during the 2020 first quarter, the Company repurchased and retired 1,233,883 shares of common stock under a previously announced stock repurchase program for \$2.2 million, or \$1.80 per share, through open market purchases, a privately negotiated transaction and a 10b5-1 plan. Subsequent to March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased an additional 777,300 shares for \$1.4 million pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan, which in the aggregate since the beginning of the year through May 7, 2020 represented a total repurchase of 2,011,183 shares for \$3.6 million, or \$1.78 per share, and 10% of its beginning share count. The Company's stock repurchase program had a remaining purchase authorization of \$1.8 million as of May 7, 2020, subject to debt covenant restrictions under its revolving credit facility.

In response to the economic impact resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has taken steps to preserve capital by implementing additional cost cutting measures, curtailing the acquisition and development of land and renegotiation lot takedown arrangements. The Company has also made strategic decision to walk away from some projects altogether, which will unburden us from substantial additional capital outlays in the future and will provide us with tax refunds with the opening up of NOL carrybacks with the passage of the CARES Act. We believe these actions are in the Company's best interest in light of current market conditions and recent tax law changes.

*Net debt-to-capital ratio, adjusted net loss, and adjusted net income per diluted share are non-GAAP measures. For a reconciliation of net debt-to-capital to the appropriate GAAP measure, please see "--Liquidity and Capital Resources - Debt-to-Capital Ratios." For a reconciliation of adjusted net loss and adjusted net loss per diluted share to the appropriate GAAP measures, please see below.

45

Table of Contents

Non-GAAP Footnote (continued)

	Thr	Three Months Ended March 31,			
	2020		2019		
	(Dollars in	thousands, except per sha	are amounts)		
Net loss attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	\$	(8,476) \$	(1,987)		
Abandoned project costs, joint venture impairment and severance charges, net of tax		9,505	1,157		
Noncash deferred tax asset remeasurement		(2,114)			
Adjusted net loss attributable to The New Home Company Inc.	<u>\$</u>	(1,085) \$	(830)		
Loss per share attributable to The New Home Company Inc.:					
Basic	\$	(0.42) \$	(0.10)		
Diluted	\$	(0.42) \$	(0.10)		
Adjusted loss per share attributable to The New Home Company Inc.:					
Basic	\$	(0.05) \$	(0.04)		
Diluted	\$	(0.05) \$	(0.04)		
Weighted average shares outstanding:					
Basic		19,951,825	19,986,394		
Diluted		19,951,825	19,986,394		
Abandoned projects costs related to Arizona luxury condominium community	\$	14,000 \$	_		
Joint venture impairment related to joint venture exit		2,287	_		
Severance charges		_	1,788		
Less: Related tax benefit		(6,782)	(631)		
Abandoned project costs, joint venture impairment and severance charges, net of tax	<u>\$</u>	9,505 \$	1,157		

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

Net New Home Orders

	Three Month	s Ended			
	March	31,	Increase/(Decrease)		
	2020	2020 2019		%	
Y . I I					
Net new home orders:					
Southern California	62	58	4	7%	
Northern California	68	45	23	51%	

46

Arizona	2	9	(7)	(78)%
Total net new home orders	132	112	20	18%
Monthly sales absorption rate per community: (1)				
Southern California	1.9	1.6	0.3	19%
Northern California	2.3	2.0	0.3	15%
Arizona	0.4	1.5	(1.1)	(73)%
Total monthly sales absorption rate per community (1)	2.0	1.7	0.3	18%
Cancellation rate	16%	12%	4%	NA
Selling communities at end of period:				
Southern California	11	12	(1)	(8)%
Northern California	10	8	2	25%
Arizona	1	2	(1)	(50)%
Total selling communities	22	22	_	%
Average selling communities:				
Southern California	11	12	(1)	(8)%
Northern California	10	7	3	43%
Arizona	2	2	_	<u> </u>
Total average selling communities	22	21	1	5%

(1) Monthly sales absorption represents the number of net new home orders divided by the number of average selling communities for the period.

Net new home orders for the 2020 first quarter increased 18% primarily as the result of an 18% increase in the monthly sales absorption rate compared to the 2019 first quarter. The increase in net orders and the monthly absorption rate was largely due to stronger buyer demand driven by lower interest rates. However, the 2020 first quarter monthly absorption pace slightly decreased 9% sequentially over the 2019 fourth quarter due to a slower absorption pace in March 2020 as a result of slower sales activity from less sales traffic caused by the stay-at-home measures implemented related to COVID-19. Our ending community count for the 2020 first quarter was 22, flat with the prior year, due to community closeouts late in the 2020 first quarter.

Demand was strongest during the 2020 first quarter for our more-affordable, entry-level product, which averaged a monthly sales pace of 2.7 per community compared to a total of 2.0 per community for the company wide average. The 2020 monthly sales pace for our entry-level product was led by an existing Northern California masterplan community in Vacaville and a popular community of paired homes in Rancho Mission Viejo in Southern California. The 2020 first quarter also benefited from strong order volume from a newly opened single family detached community in Rancho Mission Viejo, which sold out its first phase during its opening weeks. However, these increases were partially offset by a slower monthly sales pace in Arizona primarily due to the closeout of our Belmont community in Gilbert during the 2020 first quarter.

Partially offsetting the year-over-year increase in net new home orders was an increase in the Company's cancellation rate to 16% for the 2020 first quarter, as compared to 12% for the same period in 2019. Over half of the cancellations during the 2020 first quarter occurred during the month of March, primarily as a result of the economic impact COVID-19 had on our buyers.

47

Table of Contents

Backlog

	As of March 31,														
			2020				2019					% Change			
	Homes Dollar Value		Α	Average Price	Homes	Dollar Average Value Price		C	Homes	Dollar Value	Average Price				
		-				(Dollars in thousands)						.			
Southern California	66	\$	53,934	\$	817	87	\$	109,284	\$	1,256	(24)%	(51)%	(35)%		
Northern California	105		71,082		677	85		72,290		850	24%	(2)%	(20)%		
Arizona	3		5,141		1,714	32		30,991		968	(91)%	(83)%	77%		
Total	174	\$	130,157	\$	748	204	\$	212,565	\$	1,042	(15)%	(39)%	(28)%		

Backlog reflects the number of homes, net of cancellations, for which we have entered into sales contracts with customers, but for which we have not yet delivered the homes. The number of homes in backlog as of March 31, 2020 was down 15% compared to the prior year period primarily due to a lower number of beginning backlog units and a higher quarterly backlog conversion rate for the 2020 first quarter. The increase in the conversion rate to 72% for the 2020 first quarter as compared to 52% in the prior year period resulted primarily from the Company's shift to more affordably priced product, which generally has quicker build cycles and shorter backlog periods. The number of spec deliveries for the 2020 first quarter remained flat at 33% compared to the 2019 first quarter. Backlog dollar value decreased 39% due to the fewer homes in backlog at the end of the 2020 first quarter, as well as the 28% decrease in average selling price as the prior year backlog included homes from higher priced communities that have since closed out and as the Company continues its transition to more-affordable product.

Notwithstanding the overall decrease in backlog units at March 31, 2020, Northern California had a 24% increase in the number of homes in backlog, which is attributed to a 51% increase in net new home orders during the 2020 first quarter from the growth in Northern California average selling communities. The increase in Northern California backlog units was offset by a small decrease in backlog dollar value as the division's community growth has been concentrated within the more affordable Sacramento region. The 24% decline in Southern California ending backlog units at March 31, 2020 was primarily the result of a higher backlog conversion rate and a lower beginning backlog for the 2020 first quarter. The shift in Southern California to more affordable product with quick build cycles drove the year-over-year increase in backlog conversion rate and the decrease in average selling price of backlog. Average selling price of homes in backlog at March 31, 2020 decreased the most in Southern California, as orders increased from communities located in the more affordable Inland Empire as compared to the prior year where backlog units were concentrated in higher-priced communities in Orange County and Los Angeles. The year-over-year decrease in backlog units and dollar value was greatest in Arizona, primarily due to the close-out of our Gilbert, Arizona community which

had little inventory available in the later part of 2019. The increase in Arizona average selling price of backlog was up due to the mix of homes in backlog at March 31, 2020.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, we could experience higher cancellation rates compared to prior periods related to homes within our backlog as of March 31, 2020.

Lots Owned and Controlled

	As of Mar	ch 31,	Increase/(Decrease)		
	2020	2019	Amount	%	
Lots Owned:					
Southern California	437	626	(189)	(30)%	
Northern California	588	726	(138)	(19)%	
Arizona	385	301	84	28%	
Total	1,410	1,653	(243)	(15)%	
Lots Controlled:(1)					
Southern California	426	174	252	145%	
Northern California	348	439	(91)	(21)%	
Arizona	279	477	(198)	(42)%	
Total	1,053	1,090	(37)	(3)%	
Total Lots Owned and Controlled - Wholly Owned	2,463	2,743	(280)	(10)%	
Fee Building Lots(2)	1,070	1,266	(196)	(15)%	

⁽¹⁾ Includes lots that we control under purchase and sale agreements or option agreements that are subject to customary conditions and have not yet closed. There can be no assurance that such acquisitions will occur.

48

Table of Contents

The Company's wholly owned lots owned and controlled decreased 15% year-over-year to 2,463 lots, of which 43% were controlled through option contracts compared to 40% optioned in the prior year period. The decrease in wholly owned lots owned and controlled was primarily due to an increase in deliveries during the last twelve months ended March 31, 2020 compared to the same period ending March 31, 2019. These decreases were partially offset by executed contracts for new developments in Southern California's Inland Empire and across Northern California during the last twelve months ended March 31, 2020.

The decrease in fee building lots at March 31, 2020 as compared to the prior year period was primarily attributable to the delivery of 234 homes to customers during the last twelve months ended March 31, 2020, partially offset by a new contract for 38 lots located in Irvine, California in the same period.

Home Sales Revenue and New Homes Delivered

		Three Months Ended March 31,															
		2020						2019				% Change					
			Dollar	Α	verage			Dollar	Α	verage		Dollar	Average				
	Homes		Value		Price	Homes		Value	Price		Price		Price		Homes	Value	Price
						(Do	(Dollars in thousands)										
Southern California	68	\$	63,017	\$	927	61	\$	64,593	\$	1,059	11%	(2)%	(12)%				
Northern California	29		20,264		699	28		18,739		669	4%	8%	4%				
Arizona	10		12,378		1,238	10		15,854		1,585	%	(22)%	(22)%				
Total	107	\$	95,659	\$	894	99	\$	99,186	\$	1,002	8%	(4)%	(11)%				

New home deliveries increased 8% for the 2020 first quarter compared to the prior year period. The slight increase in deliveries was the result of a higher backlog conversion rate for the 2020 first quarter compared to the 2019 first quarter, partially offset by a lower number of homes in backlog at the beginning of the period. Home sales revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2020 decreased 4% primarily due to the year-over-year decrease in average selling price, partially offset by the increase in deliveries. The decrease in average selling price per delivery for the period was consistent with the Company's strategic shift to more affordable product in Southern California and the mix of homes delivered in Arizona.

The decrease in home sales revenue was driven primarily by Arizona, where deliveries were flat for the 2020 and 2019 first quarters, but experienced a 22% decrease in the average selling price of homes delivered. The decrease in average selling price for Arizona was due to product mix, as majority of the homes delivered during the 2020 first quarter were from our Gilbert community where the average sales price was \$1.0 million, as compared to the 2019 first quarter where deliveries were evenly split between this community and a luxury condominium community in Scottsdale, where the average selling price was \$2.2 million in the prior year period. Notwithstanding the increase in homes delivered in Southern California, the average selling price decreased 12% primarily due to the 2020 first quarter deliveries from our more affordable Inland Empire projects. In Northern California, home sales revenue increased primarily as a result of a modest increase in the average selling price primarily driven by a year-over-year increase in deliveries from a higher-priced, Bay Area townhome community in the 2020 first quarter.

Homebuilding Gross Margin

Homebuilding gross margin for the 2020 first quarter was 11.4% compared to 12.7% for the prior period. The 130 basis point decrease was primarily due to higher interest costs, and to a lesser extent, higher incentives in Northern California and Arizona, which were partially offset by a product mix shift. Adjusted homebuilding gross margin, which excludes interest in cost of home sales, was 17.9% and 17.6% for the 2020 and 2019 first quarters, respectively. Adjusted homebuilding gross margin is a non-GAAP measure. See the table below reconciling this non-GAAP measure to homebuilding gross margin, the nearest GAAP equivalent. Excluding the impact of interest in cost of sales, the 30 basis point improvement was a result of a product mix shift, partially offset by higher incentives.

	Three Months Ended March 31,								
	2020	%	2019	%					
_	(Dollars in thousands)								

⁽²⁾ Lots owned by third party property owners for which we perform general contracting or construction management services.

Home sales revenue	\$	95,659	100.0%	\$ 99,186	100.0%
Cost of home sales		84,722	88.6%	86,569	87.3%
Homebuilding gross margin	, <u> </u>	10,937	11.4%	12,617	12.7%
Add: Interest in cost of home sales		6,146	6.5%	4,852	4.9%
Adjusted homebuilding gross margin ⁽¹⁾	\$	17,083	17.9%	\$ 17,469	17.6%

(1) Adjusted homebuilding gross margin (or homebuilding gross margin before interest in cost of homes sales) is a non-GAAP financial measure. This measure isolates the impact that leverage has on homebuilding gross margin. We believe this information is meaningful as it allows investors to evaluate metrics of our ongoing homebuilding operations without the impact of interest costs and permits investors to make better comparisons with our competitors who also break out and adjust gross margins in a similar fashion.

49

Table of Contents

Land Sales

During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recognized \$147,000 of deferred revenue for the remaining completed work on a land sale that initially occurred in the 2019 third quarter. There was no land sales revenue for the same period in 2019.

Fee Building

	Three Months Ended March 31,							
	 2020	%	% 2019					
		(Dollars in th						
Fee building revenues	\$ 36,227	100.0%	\$ 19,662	100.0%				
Cost of fee building	35,497	98.0%	19,268	98.0%				
Fee building gross margin	\$ 730	2.0%	\$ 394	2.0%				

In the 2020 first quarter, fee building revenues increased 84% from the prior year period, driven by an increase in construction activity at fee building communities in Irvine, California. Included in fee building revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were (i) \$35.7 million and \$18.4 million of billings to land owners, respectively, and (ii) \$0.5 million and \$1.3 million of management fees from our unconsolidated joint ventures and third-party land owners, respectively. Our fee building revenues have historically been concentrated with a small number of customers. For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, one customer comprised 98% and 91%, respectively, of fee building revenue.

The cost of fee building increased in the 2020 first quarter compared to the prior year period primarily due to the increase in fee building activity mentioned above, partially offset by lower allocated G&A expenses due to lower joint venture management fees. The amount of G&A expenses included in the cost of fee building was \$1.0 million and \$1.5 million for the 2020 and 2019 first quarters, respectively. Fee building gross margin increased to \$0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 from \$0.4 million in the prior year period primarily due to higher fee billings and lower allocated G&A expenses, partially offset by reduced management fees.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

	 Three Moi Marc			As a Percent Home Sales R	U
	 2020		2019	2020	2019
			(Dollars in th	ousands)	
Selling and marketing expenses	\$ 7,466	\$	8,679	7.8%	8.8%
General and administrative expenses ("G&A")	6,023		7,391	6.3%	7.4%
Total selling, marketing and G&A ("SG&A")	\$ 13,489	\$	16,070	14.1%	16.2%
G&A	\$ 6,023	\$	7,391	6.3%	7.4%
Less: Severance charges	_		(1,788)	%	(1.8)%
G&A, excluding severance charges	\$ 6,023	\$	5,603	6.3%	5.6%
		•	0.4=0	= 00/	0.007
Selling and marketing expenses	\$ 7,466	\$	8,679	7.8%	8.8%
G&A, excluding severance charges	 6,023		5,603	6.3%	5.6%
SG&A, excluding severance charges	\$ 13,489	\$	14,282	14.1%	14.4%

During the 2020 first quarter, our SG&A rate as a percentage of home sales revenue was 14.1% compared to 16.2% in the prior year period. The 210 basis point improvement was primarily due to \$1.8 million in pretax severance charges taken in the 2019 first quarter related to right-sizing our operations by reducing headcount, including the departure of one of our executive officers. Excluding these charges in the prior year quarter, the Company's SG&A rate for the 2020 first quarter was 14.1% as compared to 14.4% in the prior year period. The 30 basis point improvement was primarily due to lower amortization of capitalized selling and marketing costs, which was partially offset by a reduction in G&A expenses allocated to fee building cost of sales during the 2020 first quarter.

SG&A excluding severance charges as a percentage of home sales revenue is a non-GAAP measure. See the table above reconciling this non-GAAP financial measure to SG&A as a percentage of home sales revenue, the nearest GAAP equivalent. We believe removing the impact of these charges from our SG&A rate is relevant to provide investors with a better comparison to rates that do not include these charges.

50

Table of Contents

Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, we had ownership interests in 10 unconsolidated joint ventures, five of which have active homebuilding or land development operations. We own interests in our unconsolidated joint ventures that generally range from 5% to 35% and these interests vary by entity.

The Company's joint venture activity for the 2020 first quarter resulted in a \$1.9 million pretax loss as compared to \$0.2 million of pretax income for the 2019 period. The Company's joint venture loss in 2020 was primarily the result of an other-than-temporary noncash impairment charge of \$2.3 million. The impairment charge related to an agreement in principle for the Company to sell its interest in the Bedford land development joint venture for cash to its partner for less than its carrying value.

The following sets forth supplemental operational and financial information about our unconsolidated joint ventures. Such information is not included in our financial data for GAAP purposes, but is reflected in our results as a component of equity in net income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures. This data is included for informational purposes only.

		Three Mo					
		March 31,					crease)
		2020		2019		Amount	%
				(Dollars in	thous	ands)	
Unconsolidated Joint Ventures - Operational Data							
Net new home orders		12		36		(24)	(67)%
New homes delivered		20		37		(17)	(46)%
Average sales price of homes delivered	\$	977	\$	1,030	\$	(53)	(5)%
Home sales revenue	\$	19,548	\$	38,127	\$	(18,579)	(49)%
Land sales revenue(1)		12,099		4,160		7,939	191%
Total revenues	\$	31,647	\$	42,287	\$	(10,640)	(25)%
Net income	\$	1,362	\$	513	\$	849	165%
Selling communities at end of period		3		6		(3)	(50)%
Backlog (dollar value)	\$	35,075	\$	70,949	\$	(35,874)	(51)%
Backlog (homes)		41		75		(34)	(45)%
Average sales price of backlog	\$	855	\$	946	\$	(91)	(10)%
Homebuilding lots owned and controlled		54		174		(120)	(69)%
Land development lots owned and controlled		1,772		1,995		(223)	(11)%
Total lots owned and controlled	_	1,826		2,169		(343)	(16)%

(1) Land sales revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2020 includes \$7.0 million of revenues related to the sale of a mixed use building sold by a homebuilding joint venture.

Interest Expense

For the 2020 first quarter, we expensed \$0.7 million of interest costs related to the portion of our debt in excess of our qualified assets in accordance with ASC 835, *Interest*. To the extent our debt exceeds our qualified inventory in the future, we will expense a portion of the interest related to such debt.

Project Abandonment Costs

During the 2020 first quarter, the Company terminated its option agreement for a luxury condominium project in Scottsdale, Arizona due to lower demand levels experienced at this community, substantial investment required to build out the remainder of the project, uncertainty associated with the economic impacts of COVID-19, and the opportunity to recognize a tax benefit from the resulting net operating loss carrybacks. As a result of this strategic decision to forgo developing the balance of the property, we recorded a project abandonment charge of \$14.0 million related to the capitalized costs, including interest, associated with the portion of the project that was abandoned.

51

Table of Contents

Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased and retired approximately \$4.8 million of its 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 for a cash payment of approximately \$4.8 million at an average price of 101.63% of face value. The Company recognized a loss on early extinguishment of debt of \$0.1 million and wrote off approximately \$46,000 of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs associated with the Notes retired. During the three months ended March 31, 2019, the Company repurchased and retired approximately \$5.0 million of its 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 for a cash payment of approximately \$4.5 million at an average price of 90.25% of face value. The Company recognized a total gain on early extinguishment of debt of \$0.4 million and wrote off approximately \$70,000 of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs associated with the Notes retired.

Provision/Benefit for Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of \$9.9 million and \$0.7 million, respectively. The Company's effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2020, differs from the federal statutory rate due to discrete items, state income tax rates and tax credits for energy efficient homes. The 2020 first quarter discrete items totaled an \$8.1 million benefit, \$5.8 million of which related to the \$14.0 million project abandonment noncash charge recorded during the quarter and a \$2.1 million benefit related to the revaluation of our deferred tax asset stemming from the enactment of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") signed into law on March 27, 2020. The CARES Act allows companies to carry back net operating losses generated in 2018 through 2020 for five years. The Company recognized a \$2.1 million discrete benefit related to the remeasurement of deferred tax assets originally valued at a 21% federal statutory tax rate which are now available to be carried back to tax years with a 35% federal statutory rate. The Company's effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2019 differs from the federal statutory tax rates due to state income taxes, estimated deduction limitations for executive compensation and discrete items. The provision for discrete items totaled \$0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and was primarily related to stock compensation and state income tax rate changes.

The CARES Act includes various income and payroll tax provisions that we are in the process of analyzing to determine the financial impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements. Aside from the carry back provision discussed above, the Company does not believe any other aspects of the CARES Act were material to the Company's benefit for income taxes during the 2020 first quarter.

Trends and Uncertainties

On March 11, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic. There is uncertainty regarding the impact and the duration of disruption that the COVID-19 outbreak and related containment and economic relief efforts will have on the economy, capital markets, consumer confidence, buyer demand for homes and availability of mortgage lending. The magnitude to which these factors will impact our business and results of operations is highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

While the 2020 first quarter started out strong with year-over-year increases in net new orders for January and February, the market began to soften during the latter part of March stemming from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result of current challenging economic conditions that began to impact our business in mid-March, our reported results for the three months ended March 31, 2020 are not reflective of current market conditions. The decline in homebuyer demand continued into April as stay-athome and shelter-in-place mandates remain in place and general economic uncertainty has negatively impacted consumer confidence. The Company has also experienced an increase in order cancellations in late March and April compared to historical cancellation rates. It is unclear how long these adverse conditions will persist or how they will impact our future results. Our results of operations may be affected by changes in economic conditions that negatively impact the housing and financial services markets.

The health and safety of our employees remains our primary focus during this pandemic. We have implemented the following actions in response to the pandemic: several health and safety protocols to protect our employees, trade partners and customers as required by state and local government agencies and taking into consideration the CDC and other public health authorities' guidelines. Residential construction has been designated as an essential business as part of critical infrastructure in most jurisdictions in which we operate, and we are continuing our homebuilding operations at our jobsites with appropriate safety measures in place. Our model home sales offices are closed to the public and our sales operations have shifted to an appointment-only home sales process with a focus on virtual sales tools to connect with our customers online. Our customer care warranty activities are limited to emergency-only work orders to limit public contact. Finally, our corporate and divisional office employees have moved to a work-from-home model subject to limited exceptions to maintain minimum basic operations.

52

Table of Contents

While all of the above-referenced steps are necessary and appropriate in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, they do impact our ability to operate our business in its ordinary and traditional course. These actions, combined with a reduction in the availability, capacity, and efficiency of municipal and private services necessary to progress land development, homebuilding, mortgage loan originations, and home sales, which in each case has varied by market depending on the scope of the restrictions local authorities have established, have tempered our sales pace and delayed home construction and deliveries in the latter part of March and through the date of this report. The potential magnitude or duration of the business, operational and economic impacts from the unprecedented public health effort to contain and combat the spread of COVID-19 are uncertain and include, among other things, significant volatility in financial markets and a sharp decrease in the value of equity securities, including our common stock. In addition, we can provide no assurance as to whether the COVID-19 public health effort will be intensified to such an extent that we will not be able to conduct any business operations in certain of our served markets or at all for an indefinite period.

In response to the current economic uncertainty, the Company has taken steps to preserve capital by implementing additional cost cutting measures, curtailing the acquisition and development of land, renegotiating lot takedown arrangements and limiting the number of speculative homes under construction. Additionally, the decision was made to walk away from further development at a wholly owned community in Scottsdale, Arizona resulting in a \$14.0 million project abandonment charge during the 2020 first quarter and to agree in principle to exit a land development joint venture in Southern California which resulted in a \$2.3 million other-than-temporary impairment charge in the quarter. By not continuing with these projects, the Company will avoid significant capital outlays and help preserve capital for the future, as well as receive a cash payment of approximately \$5.1 million in the case of our joint venture exit.

Further discussion of the potential impacts on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows from the COVID-19 pandemic is provided below under Part II, Item 1A "Risk Factors."

We will continue to closely monitor any updates from the CDC and guidance from federal and local and government and public health agencies and adjust our operations accordingly. While we cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of this pandemic, an extended economic slowdown in the U.S. could materially impact our results of operations in fiscal 2020 and potentially beyond.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our principal sources of capital for the three months ended March 31, 2020 were cash generated from home sales activities, distributions from our unconsolidated joint ventures, and management fees from our fee building agreements. Our principal uses of capital for the three months ended March 31, 2020 were land purchases, land development, home construction, contributions and advances to our unconsolidated joint ventures, repurchases of the Company's common stock and bonds, and payment of operating expenses, interest and routine liabilities.

Cash flows for each of our communities depend on their stage in the development cycle, and can differ substantially from reported earnings. Early stages of development or expansion require significant cash outlays for land acquisitions, entitlements and other approvals, and construction of model homes, roads, utilities, general landscaping and other amenities. Because these costs are a component of our real estate inventories and not recognized in our consolidated statement of operations until a home is delivered, we incur significant cash outlays prior to our recognition of earnings. In the later stages of community development, cash inflows may significantly exceed earnings reported for financial statement purposes, as the cash outflows associated with home and land construction were previously incurred. From a liquidity standpoint, we are generally active in acquiring and developing lots to maintain or grow our lot supply and community count. We expect cash outlays for land purchases, land development and home construction at times to exceed cash generated by operations. We are currently focused on reducing our debt levels and leverage and are reducing spend in response to the economic uncertainty produced by the COVID-19 pandemic and therefore expect to spend less on land purchases than we have over the last few years.

During the three months ended March 31, 2020, we generated cash flows from operating activities of \$17.3 million. We ended the first quarter of 2020 with \$87.9 million of cash and cash equivalents, an \$8.5 million increase from December 31, 2019. Generally, we intend to continue reducing our debt levels within our target net leverage ranges in the near term, and then to deploy a portion of cash generated from the sale of inventory to acquire and develop strategic, well-positioned lots that represent opportunities to generate future income and cash flows. However, the uncertainty of the COVID-19 pandemic may impact our ability to generate cash flows from operations which may limit our debt reduction and land acquisition efforts in the near to mid-term.

As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, we had \$10.6 million and \$9.6 million, respectively, in accounts payable that related to costs incurred under our fee building agreements. Funding to pay these amounts is the obligation of the third-party land owner, which is generally funded on a monthly basis. Similarly, contracts and accounts receivable and due from affiliates as of the same dates included \$11.6 million and \$10.4 million, respectively, related to the payment of the above payables.

Table of Contents

We intend to utilize both debt and equity as part of our ongoing financing strategy, coupled with redeployment of cash flows from operations, to operate our business. As of March 31, 2020, we had outstanding borrowings of \$303.3 million in aggregate principal related to our Notes and no borrowings outstanding under our credit facility. We will consider a number of factors when evaluating our level of indebtedness and when making decisions regarding the incurrence of new indebtedness, including the purchase price of assets to be acquired with debt financing, the estimated market value of our assets and the ability of particular assets, and our Company as a whole, to generate cash flow to cover the expected debt service. In addition, our debt contains certain financial covenants, among others, that limit the amount of leverage we can maintain, and minimum tangible net worth and liquidity requirements.

We intend to finance future acquisitions and developments with what we believe to be the most advantageous source of capital available to us at the time of the transaction, which may include unsecured corporate level debt, property-level debt, and other public, private or bank debt, seller land banking arrangements, or common and preferred equity.

While the COVID-19 pandemic and related mitigation efforts have created significant uncertainty as to general economic and housing market conditions for the remainder of 2020 and beyond, we believe that we will be able to fund our current and foreseeable liquidity needs with our cash on hand, cash generated from operations, and cash expected to be available from our revolving line of credit or through accessing debt or equity capital, as needed, although no assurance can be provided that such additional debt or equity capital will be available or on acceptable terms, especially in light of the current COVID-19 pandemic.

Senior Notes Due 2022

On March 17, 2017, the Company completed the sale of \$250 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.25% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2022 (the "Existing Notes"), in a private placement. The Notes were issued at an offering price of 98.961% of their face amount, which represented a yield to maturity of 7.50%. On May 4, 2017, the Company completed a tack-on private placement offering through the sale of an additional \$75 million in aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 ("Additional Notes"). The Additional Notes were issued at an offering price of 102.75% of their face amount plus accrued interest since March 17, 2017, which represented a yield to maturity of 6.438%. Net proceeds from the Existing Notes were used to repay all borrowings outstanding under the Company's revolving credit facility with the remainder used for general corporate purposes. Net proceeds from the Additional Notes were used for working capital, land acquisition and general corporate purposes. Interest on the Existing Notes and the Additional Notes (together, the "Notes") is payable semiannually in arrears on April 1 and October 1. The maturity date of the Notes is April 1, 2022. The Notes were exchanged in an exchange offer for Notes that are identical to the original Notes, except that they are registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and are freely tradeable in accordance with applicable law. During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased approximately \$4.8 million of the Notes at 101.63% of face value reducing the outstanding aggregate principal amount to \$303.3 million.

The Company is entitled at its option to redeem all or a portion of the Notes at any time on and after October 1, 2019, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice, at the redemption prices (expressed in percentages of principal amount on the redemption date), plus accrued interest to the redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record of the Notes on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date), if redeemed during the 12 or 6 month period, as applicable, commencing on each of the dates set forth below:

Period	Redemption Price
October 1, 2019	103.625%
October 1, 2020	101.813%
April 1, 2020	100.000%

The Notes contain certain restrictive covenants, including a limitation on additional indebtedness and a limitation on restricted payments. Restricted payments include, among other things, dividends, investments in unconsolidated entities, and stock repurchases. Under the limitation on additional indebtedness, we are permitted to incur specified categories of indebtedness but are prohibited, aside from those exceptions, from incurring further indebtedness if we do not satisfy either a leverage condition or an interest coverage condition. The leverage and interest coverage conditions are summarized in the table below, as described and defined further in the indenture for the Notes. Exceptions to the additional indebtedness limitation include, among other things, borrowings of up to \$260 million under existing or future bank credit facilities, non-recourse indebtedness, and indebtedness incurred for the purpose of refinancing or repaying certain existing indebtedness. Under the limitation on restricted payments, we are also prohibited from making restricted payments, aside from certain exceptions, if we do not satisfy either condition. In addition, the amount of restricted payments that we can make is subject to an overall basket limitation, which builds based on, among other things, 50% of consolidated net income from January 1, 2017 forward and 100% of the net cash proceeds from qualified equity offerings. Exceptions to the foregoing limitations on our ability to make restricted payments include, among other things, investments in joint ventures and other investments up to 15% of our consolidated tangible net assets and a general basket of \$15 million. The Notes are guaranteed by all of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries, for more information about these guarantees, please see Note 17 of the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

54

Table of Contents

	March 31	, 2020
<u>Financial Conditions</u>	Actual	Requirement
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio: EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Incurred; or	1.6	> 2.0 : 1.0
Leverage Ratio: Indebtedness to Tangible Net Worth	1.36	< 2.25 : 1.0

As of March 31, 2020, we were able to satisfy the leverage condition.

Senior Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

The Company has a senior unsecured revolving credit facility ("Credit Facility") with a bank group. On August 7, 2019, the Company entered into a Modification Agreement (the "Modification") to its Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. The Modification, among other things, (i) extended the maturity date of the revolving credit facility to March 1, 2021, (ii) decreased (A) the total commitments under the facility to \$130 million from \$200 million and (B) the accordion feature to \$200 million from \$300 million, subject to certain financial conditions, including the availability of bank commitments, (iii) provides for certain adjustments to the borrowing base calculation commencing January 1, 2020; and (iv) revises the covenant limiting restricted payments to provide for basket limitations and net leverage ratio thresholds on the Company's stock repurchases, dividend payments, and repurchases of its Notes, subject to specified exceptions.

As of March 31, 2020, we had no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. Interest is payable monthly and is charged at a rate of 1-month LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 3.00% depending on the Company's leverage ratio as calculated at the end of each fiscal quarter. As of March 31, 2020, the interest rate under the Credit Facility was 3.99%. Pursuant to the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial covenants as defined in the Credit Facility, including, but not limited to,

		March 31, 2020				
				Covenant		
Financial Covenants		Actual		Requirement		
		(Dollars in	thous	ands)		
Unencumbered Liquid Assets (Minimum Liquidity Covenant)	\$	87,863	\$	10,000 (1)		
EBITDA to Interest Incurred(2)		1.54		> 1.75 : 1.0		
Tangible Net Worth ⁽³⁾	\$	222,224	\$	188,362		
Net Leverage Ratio		50.0%	< 65%			

- (1) So long as the Company is in compliance with the interest coverage test (see Note 2 below), the minimum unencumbered liquid assets that the Company must maintain as of the quarter end measurement date is \$10 million
- (2) If the EBITDA to Interest Incurred test is not met, it will not be considered an event of default so long as the Company maintains unrestricted cash equal to not less than the trailing 12 month consolidated interest incurred (as defined in the Credit Facility agreement) which was \$27.5 million as of March 31, 2020. The Company was in compliance with this requirement with an unrestricted cash balance of \$87.9 million at March 31, 2020.
- cash balance of \$87.9 million at March 31, 2020.

 The Credit Facility previously applied an "adjusted leverage ratio" test computed as total joint venture debt divided by total joint venture equity. This covenant ceased to apply as of September 30, 2017 because our consolidated tangible net worth exceeded \$250 million in that quarter. Once the adjusted leverage ratio ceased to apply, consolidated tangible net worth is reduced by an adjustment equal to the aggregate amount of investments in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures that exceed 35% of consolidated tangible net worth as calculated without giving effect to this adjustment (the "Adjustment Amount"). The Adjustment Amount was considered in the calculation of consolidated tangible net worth.

The Credit Facility also contains a limit on secured indebtedness of \$55 million, as well as certain restrictive covenants including limitations on incurrence of liens, dividends and other distributions, asset dispositions and investments in entities that are not guarantors, and limitations on fundamental changes. The Credit Facility contains customary events of default, subject to cure periods in certain circumstances, that would result in the termination of the commitments and permit the Lenders to accelerate payment on outstanding borrowings and require cash collateralization of letters of credit. These events of default include nonpayment of principal, interest and fees or other amounts; violation of covenants; inaccuracy of representations and warranties; cross default to certain other indebtedness; unpaid judgments; change in control; and certain bankruptcy and other insolvency events. As of March 31, 2020, we were in compliance with all covenants under our Credit Facility.

55

Table of Contents

Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds

The following table summarizes our letters of credit and surety bonds as of the dates indicate:

	March 31, 2020	December 31, 2019
	(Dollars in	thousands)
Letters of credit ⁽¹⁾	\$	\$
Surety bonds(2)	46,289	47,593
Total outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds	\$ 46,289	\$ 47,593

- As of March 31, 2020, there is a \$17.5 million sublimit for letters of credit available under our Credit Facility.
- (2) The estimated remaining costs to complete as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 were \$24.7 million and \$29.1 million, respectively.

Stock Repurchase Program

On May 10, 2018, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program (the "Repurchase Program") authorizing the repurchase of the Company's common stock with an aggregate value of up to \$15 million. Repurchases of the Company's common stock may be made in open-market transactions, effected through a broker-dealer at prevailing market prices, in privately negotiated transactions, in block trades or by other means in accordance with federal securities laws, including pursuant to any trading plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Repurchase Program does not obligate the Company to repurchase any particular amount or number of shares of common stock, and it may be modified, suspended or discontinued at any time. The timing and amount of repurchases are determined by the Company's management at its discretion and be based on a variety of factors, such as the market price of the Company's common stock, corporate and contractual requirements, general market and economic conditions and legal requirements. During the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company repurchased and retired 1,233,883 and 153,916 shares of its common stock at an aggregate purchase price of \$2.2 million and \$1.0 million, respectively. Purchases during the three months ended March 31, 2020 were made in open market transactions, a privately negotiated transaction, and pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan. As of March 31, 2020, the Company had repurchased and retired in aggregate 2,390,915 shares totaling \$11.8 million and had remaining authorization to purchase \$3.2 million of common shares.

Subsequent to March 31, 2020, the Company repurchased an additional 777,300 shares for \$1.4 million pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan, which in the aggregate since the beginning of the year through May 7, 2020 represented a total repurchase of 2,011,183 shares for \$3.6 million, or \$1.78 per share, and 10% of its beginning share count. As of May 7, 2020, the Repurchase Program had remaining purchase authorization of \$1.8 million.

Debt-to-Capital Ratios

We believe that debt-to-capital ratios provide useful information to the users of our financial statements regarding our financial position and leverage. Net debt-to-capital ratio is a non-GAAP financial measure. See the table below reconciling this non-GAAP measure to debt-to-capital ratio, the nearest GAAP equivalent.

	March 31,	D	ecember 31,
	2020		2019
	(Dollars in	thousan	ds)
Total debt, net of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs	\$ 300,479	\$	304,832
Equity, exclusive of non-controlling interest	 222,224		232,647
Total capital	\$ 522,703	\$	537,479
Ratio of debt-to-capital(1)	57.5%		56.7%
Total debt, net of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs	\$ 300,479	\$	304,832

Less: Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash	88,287	79,431
Net debt	212,192	225,401
Equity, exclusive of non-controlling interest	222,224	232,647
Total capital	\$ 434,416 \$	458,048
Ratio of net debt-to-capital ⁽²⁾	48.8%	49.2%

- (1) The ratio of debt-to-capital is computed as the quotient obtained by dividing total debt, net of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs by total capital (the sum of total debt, net of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs plus equity), exclusive of non-controlling interest.
- (2) The ratio of net debt-to-capital is computed as the quotient obtained by dividing net debt (which is total debt, net of unamortized discount, premium and debt issuance costs less cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to the extent necessary to reduce the debt balance to zero) by total capital, exclusive of non-controlling interest. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is the ratio of debt-to-capital. We believe the ratio of net debt-to-capital is a relevant financial measure for investors to understand the leverage employed in our operations and as an indicator of our ability to obtain financing. We believe that by deducting our cash from our debt, we provide a measure of our indebtedness that takes into account our cash liquidity. We believe this provides useful information as the ratio of debt-to-capital does not take into account our liquidity and we believe that the ratio net of cash provides supplemental information by which our financial position may be considered. Investors may also find this to be helpful when comparing our leverage to the leverage of our competitors that present similar information.

56

Table of Contents

Cash Flows — Three Months Ended March 31, 2020 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2019

For the three months ended March 31, 2020 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2019, the comparison of cash flows is as follows:

- Net cash provided by operating activities was \$17.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to net cash used in operating activities of \$12.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019. The year-over-year change was primarily a result of a net increase in cash inflow related to the reduction in real estate inventories of \$27.1 million for the 2020 period as compared to \$9.7 million for the 2019 period. The change in real estate inventories cash flow was primarily driven by the year-over-year decrease in land acquisition and development spend and reduction in construction in progress spend during the 2020 period. Additionally, noncash project abandonment costs of \$14.0 million and a \$2.3 million noncash impairment to the Company's investment in an unconsolidated joint venture were recorded during the 2020 first quarter. The increase in cash inflow was partially offset by a \$6.5 million increase in net loss.
- Net cash used in investing activities was \$1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to \$1.2 million of net cash provided by investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2019. For the three months ended March 31, 2020, net contributions and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures were \$1.0 million compared to net distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures of \$1.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019. The increase in net contributions for the 2020 first quarter was primarily due to a year-over-year reduction in joint venture distributions from our Avanti and Mountain Shadows joint ventures and an increase in joint venture contributions to one land development joint venture in Northern California.
- Net cash used in financing activities was \$7.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020 compared to \$10.5 million of net cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2019. The year-over-year reduction of cash inflow is primarily related to net borrowings from the Company's credit facility of \$16.5 million in the prior year period. Additionally, the outflow in 2020 reflects \$4.8 million of cash paid to repurchase and retire our Notes and \$2.2 million for the repurchase of the Company's common stock compared to \$4.5 million of Note repurchases and \$1.0 million of common stock repurchases in the prior year period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Option Contracts

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into land option contracts in order to procure lots for the construction of our homes. We are subject to customary obligations associated with entering into contracts for the purchase of land and improved lots. These purchase contracts typically require a cash deposit and the purchase of properties under these contracts is generally contingent upon satisfaction of certain requirements by the sellers, including obtaining applicable property and development entitlements. We also utilize option contracts with land sellers and financial intermediaries as a method of acquiring land in staged takedowns, to help us manage the financial and market risk associated with land holdings, to reduce the use of funds from our corporate financing sources, and to enhance our return on capital. Option contracts generally require a nonrefundable deposit for the right to acquire lots over a specified period of time at pre-determined prices. We generally have the right at our discretion to terminate our obligations under both purchase contracts and option contracts by forfeiting our cash deposit with no further financial responsibility to the land seller or financial intermediary. In some instances, we may also expend funds for due diligence and development activities with respect to our option contracts prior to purchase which we would have to write off should we not purchase the land. As of March 31, 2020, we had \$13.6 million of nonrefundable and \$0.1 million of refundable cash deposits pertaining to land option contracts and purchase contracts with an estimated aggregate remaining purchase price of \$86.0 million, net of deposits. These cash deposits are included as a component of our real estate inventories in our condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Our utilization of land option contracts is dependent on, among other things, the availability of land sellers willing to enter into option arrangements, the availability of capital to financial intermediaries to finance the development of optioned lots, general housing market conditions, and local market dynamics. Options may be more difficult to procure from land sellers in strong housing markets and are more prevalent in certain geographic regions.

Joint Ventures

We enter into land development and homebuilding joint ventures from time to time as means of:

- leveraging our capital base
- accessing larger lot positions
- · expanding our market opportunities
- · managing financial and market risk associated with land holdings

57

Table of Contents

These joint ventures have historically obtained secured acquisition, development and/or construction financing which reduces the use of funds from our corporate financing sources.

We are subject to certain contingent obligations in connection with our unconsolidated joint ventures. The Company has provided credit enhancements in connection with joint venture borrowings in the form of loan-to-value ("LTV") maintenance agreements in order to secure the joint venture's performance under the loans and maintenance of certain LTV ratios. The Company has also entered into agreements with its partners in each of the unconsolidated joint ventures whereby the Company and its partners are apportioned liability under the LTV maintenance agreements according to their respective capital interest. In addition, the agreements provide the Company, to the extent its partner has an unpaid liability under such credit enhancements, the right to receive distributions from the unconsolidated joint venture that would otherwise be made to the

partner. However, there is no guarantee that such distributions will be made or will be sufficient to cover the Company's liability under such LTV maintenance agreements. The loans underlying the LTV maintenance agreements include acquisition and development loans, construction revolvers and model home loans, and the agreements remain in force until the loans are satisfied. Due to the nature of the loans, the outstanding balance at any given time is subject to a number of factors including the status of site improvements, the mix of horizontal and vertical development underway, the timing of phase build outs, and the period necessary to complete the escrow process for homebuyers. As of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, \$21.9 million and \$28.6 million, respectively, was outstanding under loans that are credit enhanced by the Company through LTV maintenance agreements. Under the terms of the joint venture agreements, the Company's proportionate share of LTV maintenance agreement liabilities was \$4.4 million and \$5.8 million as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.

In addition, the Company has provided completion agreements regarding specific performance for certain projects whereby the Company is required to complete the given project with funds provided by the beneficiary of the agreement. If there are not adequate funds available under the specific project loans, the Company would then be subject to financial liability under such completion guaranties. Typically, under such terms of the joint venture agreements, the Company has the right to apportion the respective share of any costs funded under such completion guaranties to its partners. However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to recover against our partners for such amounts owed to us under the terms of such joint venture agreements. In connection with joint venture borrowings, the Company also selectively provides (a) an environmental indemnity provided to the lender that holds the lender harmless from and against losses arising from the discharge of hazardous materials from the property and non-compliance with applicable environmental laws; and (b) indemnification of the lender from customary "bad boy acts" of the unconsolidated entity such as fraud, misrepresentation, misapplication or non-payment of rents, profits, insurance, and condemnation proceeds, waste and mechanic liens, and bankruptcy. Additionally, in some cases, under our joint venture agreements, our shares of profits and losses are greater than our contribution percentage.

For more information about our off-balance sheet arrangements, please see Note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

58

Table of Contents

As of March 31, 2020, we held membership interests in 10 unconsolidated joint ventures, six of which related to homebuilding activities and four related to land development as noted below. Of the 10 joint ventures, five have active homebuilding or land development activities ongoing and the balance are effectively inactive with only warranty activities. We were a party to two loan-to-value maintenance agreements related to unconsolidated joint ventures as of March 31, 2020. The following table reflects certain financial and other information related to our unconsolidated joint ventures as of March 31, 2020:

			March 31, 2020									
	Year		Contribution		Tot	al Joint Venture		NWHM	Debt-to-Total	Loan-to- Value Maintenance	Estimated Future Capital	Lots Owned and
Joint Venture (Project Name)	Formed	Location	%(1)		Assets	Debt(2)	Equity	Equity(3)	Capitalization	Agreement	Commitment(4)	Controlled
							((Dollars in 000's)				
TNHC-HW San Jose LLC (Orchard Park)	2012	San Jose, CA	15%	\$	2,110 \$	- \$	333	\$ 99	-%	N/A	\$	_
TNHC-TCN Santa Clarita LP (Villa Metro)(5)	2012	Santa Clarita, CA	10%		861	_	212	53	-%	N/A	_	_
TNHC Newport LLC (Meridian)(5)	2013	Newport Beach, CA	12%		1,225	_	1,122	267	-%	N/A	_	_
Encore McKinley Village LLC (McKinley Village)	2013	Sacramento, CA	10%		29,267	7,236	19,516	1,953	27%	Yes	_	36
TNHC Russell Ranch LLC (Russell Ranch)(5)(6) (7)	2013	Folsom, CA	35%		63,174	-,250	60,971	12,752	_%	N/A	4,835	631
TNHC-HW Foster City LLC (Foster Square)(6)	2013	Foster City, CA	35%		329	_	328	155	%	N/A		_
Calabasas Village LP (Avanti)(5)	2013	Calabasas, CA	10%		5,057	_	3,602	360	%	N/A	_	_
TNHC-HW Cannery LLC (Cannery)(6)	2013	Davis, CA	35%		3,048	_	3,024	1,059	%	N/A	_	6
Arantine Hills Holdings LP (Bedford)(5)(6)(8)	2014	Corona, CA	5%		139,342	_	135,059	6,756	%	N/A	2,163	1,135
TNHC Mountain Shadows LLC (Mountain Shadows)	2015	Paradise Valley, AZ	25%		37.906	14,674	19,672	4,949	43%	Yes	_	18
Total Unconsolidated Joint Ventures			2370	\$	282,319	3 21,910 \$	243,839	\$ 28,403	8%	163	\$ 6,998	1,826

- (1) Actual equity interests may differ due to current phase of underlying project's life cycle. The contribution percentage reflects the percentage of capital we are generally obligated to contribute (subject to adjustment under the joint venture agreement) and generally (subject to waterfall provisions) aligns with our percentage of distributions. In some cases our share of profit and losses may be greater than our contribution percentage.
- (2) Scheduled maturities of the unconsolidated joint venture debt as of March 31, 2020 are as follows: \$14.7 million matures in 2020 and \$7.2 million matures in 2021. The \$14.7 million of Mountain Shadows debt was due December 14, 2019; however, pursuant to the loan agreement, advances made related to the construction of a presold home shall be due and payable 12 months after the initial advance of such loan with the option to extend an additional three months (provided no event of default has occurred).
- (3) Represents the Company's equity in unconsolidated joint ventures, as reflected in the financial records of the respective joint ventures. Equity does not include \$0.8 million of an other-than-temporary impairment charge to the Company's investment, interest capitalized to certain investments in unconsolidated joint ventures and certain basis differences, which along with equity, are included in investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint ventures in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.
- (4) Estimated future capital commitment represents our proportionate share of estimated future contributions to the respective unconsolidated joint ventures as of March 31, 2020. Actual contributions may differ materially
- (5) Certain current and former members of the Company's board of directors are affiliated with entities that have an investment in these joint ventures. See Note 12 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
- (6) Land development joint venture.
- (7) The Company's share of capital contributions for certain improvements in the aggregate amount of approximately \$26 million is 50%.
- (8) The Company has agreed in principle to sell our interest in this joint venture to our partner, and we are currently in the process of drafting definitive agreements associated with our exit from the joint venture and the sale of our interest. This transaction is expected to close around the end of the 2020 second quarter. We are expected to receive \$5.1 million in cash for our anticipated sale of our partnership interest and expect to have an option to purchase at market 30% of the lots from this masterplan community.

As of March 31, 2020, the unconsolidated joint ventures were in compliance with their respective loan covenants, where applicable, and we were not required to make any loan-to-value maintenance related payments during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

59

Table of Contents

Inflation

Our homebuilding and fee building segments can be adversely impacted by inflation, primarily from higher land, financing, labor, material and construction costs. In addition, inflation can lead to higher mortgage rates, which can significantly affect the affordability of mortgage financing to homebuyers. While we attempt to pass on cost increases to customers through increased prices, when weak housing market conditions exist, we may be unable to offset cost increases with higher selling prices.

Seasonality

Historically, the homebuilding industry experiences seasonal fluctuations in quarterly operating results and capital requirements. We typically experience the highest new home order activity in late winter and spring, although this activity also highly depends on the number of active selling communities, timing of new community openings and other market factors. Since it typically takes five to nine months to construct a new home, depending on the nature of the product and whether it is single-family detached or

multi-family attached, we typically deliver more homes in the second half of the year as late winter and spring home orders convert to home deliveries. Because of this seasonality, home starts, construction costs and related cash outflows have historically been highest in the second and third quarters, and the majority of cash receipts from home deliveries occur during the second half of the year, particularly in the fourth quarter. We expect this seasonal pattern to continue over the long-term, although it may be affected by volatility in the homebuilding industry and the opening and closeout of communities. In addition, as a result of the ongoing uncertainties and evolution of COVID-19, our traditional seasonal pattern is expected to be significantly impacted during 2020 (which, depending on long-term impacts, may continue into 2021 and beyond).

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting policies generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Management evaluates such estimates and judgments on an on-going basis and makes adjustments as deemed necessary. Actual results could differ from these estimates if conditions are significantly different in the future.

Our critical accounting estimates and policies have not changed from those reported in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The portion of Note 1 to the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements under the heading "Recently Issued Accounting Standards" included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q is incorporated herein by reference.

60

Table of Contents

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

This item has been omitted as we qualify as a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure based on the definition of "disclosure controls and procedures" in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide a reasonable level of assurance of reaching our desired disclosure control objectives. In designing controls and procedures specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error and mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of controls.

At the end of the period being reported upon, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of March 31, 2020.

Changes in Internal Controls

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

61

Table of Contents

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that any such claims and litigation will materially affect our results of operations or financial position.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as set forth below, as of the date of this report, there have been no material changes to the risk factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The following risk factor is added to the Risk Factors set forth in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the heading "Risks Related to Our Business."

Our business has been materially and adversely disrupted by the present COVID-19 outbreak and could be materially and adversely disrupted by another pandemic,

epidemic or outbreak of infectious disease, or similar public health threat, or fear of such an event, in the United States or elsewhere, and the measures implemented to address such an event by government agencies and authorities.

A pandemic, epidemic or similar serious public health issue, such as the present outbreak of COVID-19, and the measures taken by international, federal, state and local governments, and other authorities to address it, could significantly disrupt our business in the ordinary course for an extended period. Further, a significant outbreak of contagious diseases, such as COVID-19, could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely affect the global economy and financial markets, resulting in an economic downturn. As a result, consumer confidence may wane and demand for our homes may decline having a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of COVID-19 a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures. On March 13, 2020, the United States declared a national emergency concerning the outbreak, and most states and municipalities have declared public health emergencies including the states in which we operate, California and Arizona. Along with these declarations, California and Arizona have enacted "stay-at-home" and "shelter-in-place" orders to contain and combat the outbreak and spread of COVID-19 that substantially restrict daily activities for individuals and many businesses to curtail or cease normal operations.

In response to the stay-at-home and shelter-in-place orders in California and Arizona, our model homes and design studios are no longer open to the public and are operating on an appointment-only basis, as permitted, following recommended distancing and other health and safety protocols when meeting in person with a customer. Associates at our corporate and divisional offices have moved to a work-from-home model for nearly all employees. Construction activities at our job sites within most of the jurisdictions in which we operate are permitted to continue during the stay-at-home and shelter-in-place orders, however, careful protocols have been set in place to protect our employees and trade partners that may result in less efficient operations. The restrictions the Company has taken to contain outbreak as well as a reduction in the availability, capacity and efficiency of municipal and private services necessary to operations may temper our sales pace and delay the delivery of our homes.

Our business can be negatively impacted as a result of a number of additional factors influenced by the COVID-19 pandemic, including as a result of an unwillingness of customers to visit model homes or employees to return to work due to fears about illness; disruptions to the supply chain for building materials; disruptions in the mortgage financing markets; illness of key executives; inefficiencies due to safety protocols and social distancing; and costs incurred to disinfect contaminated employee work spaces, model homes or construction work sites.

We are uncertain of the potential full magnitude or duration of the business and economic impacts from the unprecedented public health effort to contain and combat the spread of COVID-19, which include, among other things, significant volatility in financial markets and a sharp decrease in the value of equity securities, including our common stock. In addition, we can provide no assurance as to whether the COVID-19 public health effort will be intensified to such an extent that we will no longer be designated an essential business or that we will not be able to conduct any business operations in certain of our served markets or at all for an indefinite period.

62

Table of Contents

Our business could also be negatively impacted over the medium-to-longer term if the disruptions related to COVID-19 decrease consumer confidence generally or with respect to purchasing a home; cause civil unrest; negatively impact mortgage availability or the federal government's mortgage loan-related programs; or precipitate a prolonged economic downturn and/or an extended rise in unemployment or tempering of wage growth, any of which could lower demand for our products; impair our ability to sell and build homes in a typical manner, or at all, generate revenues and cash flows, and/or access capital or lending markets (or significantly increase the costs of doing so), as may be necessary to sustain our business; increase our use of sales incentives and concessions which could adversely affect our margins; increase the costs or decrease the supply of building materials or the availability of subcontractors and other talent, including as a result of infections or medically necessary or recommended self-quarantining, or governmental mandates to direct production activities to support public health efforts; and/or result in our recognizing charges in current and future periods, which may be material, for inventory impairments or land option contract abandonments, or both, related to our current inventory assets. For example, during the 2020 first quarter, the Company decided to terminate its option contract for a luxury condominium project in Scottsdale, Arizona in large part due to significant economic uncertainty related to COVID-19 and recorded an abandonment charge of \$14.0 million related to the capitalized costs that have accumulated to the portion of the project that is being abandoned. The long-term economic impact and near-term financial impacts may cause us to incur other abandonment or impairment charges in the future, but the impact of COVID-19 cannot be reliably quantified or estimated at this time.

Should the adverse impacts described above (or others that are currently unknown) occur, whether individually or collectively, we would expect to experience, among other things, decreases in our net orders, homes delivered, average selling prices, revenues and profitability, as we have in the first few weeks of our second quarter, and such impacts could be material to our condensed consolidated financial statements in the second quarter and beyond. In addition, should the COVID-19 public health effort intensify to such an extent that we cannot operate in most or all of our served markets, we could generate few or no orders and deliver few, if any, homes during the applicable period, which could be prolonged. Along with a potential increase in cancellations of home purchase contracts, if there are prolonged government restrictions on our business and our customers, and/or an extended economic recession, we could be unable to produce revenues and cash flows sufficient to conduct our business; meet the terms of our covenants and other requirements under the Credit Facility and Notes. Such a circumstance could, among other things, exhaust our available liquidity (and ability to access liquidity sources) and/or trigger an acceleration to pay a significant portion or all of our then-outstanding debt obligations, which we may be unable to do.

The following Risk Factor under the heading "Risks Related to Our Business" below amends and restates the Risk Factor set forth in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the heading "Failure to comply with privacy laws or an information systems interruption or breach in security that releases personal identifying information or other confidential information could adversely affect us."

Failure to comply with privacy laws or an information systems interruption or breach in security that releases personal identifying information or other confidential information could adversely affect us.

Privacy, security, and compliance concerns have continued to increase as technology has evolved. We use information technology and other computer resources to carry out important operational and marketing activities and to maintain our business records. Furthermore, as part of our normal business activities, we collect and store personal identifying information, including information about employees, homebuyers, customers, vendors and suppliers and may share information with vendors who assist us with certain aspects of our business. The regulatory environment in California and throughout the U.S. surrounding information security and privacy is increasingly demanding. We may share some of this confidential information with our vendors, such as escrow companies and related title services enterprises, who partner with us to support certain aspects of our business. The information technology systems we use are dependent upon global communications providers, web browsers, third-party software and data storage providers and other aspects of the Internet infrastructure that have experienced security breaches, cyber-attacks, ransomware attacks, significant systems failures and service outages in the past. A material breach in the security of our information technology systems or other data security controls could include the theft or release of customer, employee, vendor or company data. A data security breach, a significant and extended disruption in the functioning of our information technology systems or a breach of any of our data security controls could disrupt our business operations, damage our reputation and cause us to lose customers, adversely impact our sales and revenue and require us to incur significant expense to address and remediate or otherwise resolve these kinds of issues. The release of confidential information as a result of a security breach could also lead to litigation or other proceedings against us by affected individuals or business partners, or by regulators, and the outcome of such procee

security breaches in the future. We provide employee awareness training of cybersecurity threats and routinely utilize information technology consultants to assist us in our evaluations of the effectiveness of the security of our information technology systems, and we regularly enhance our security measures to protect our systems and data. However, because methods used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade systems evolve frequently and often are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these attacks or to implement adequate preventative measures. Consequently, we cannot eliminate the risk that a security breach, cyber-attack, ransomware attack, data theft or other significant systems or security failures will occur in the future, and such occurrences could have a material and adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial position. In addition, the cost and operational consequences of implementing further data or system protection measure could be significant and our efforts to deter, identify, mitigate and/or eliminate any security breaches or incidents may not be successful.

63

Table of Contents

With the outbreak of COVID-19 and the federal and state mandates implemented to control its spread, we have taken steps to allow our workforce to perform critical business functions remotely. Many of these measures are being deployed for the first time and there is no guarantee the data security and privacy safeguards we have put in place will be completely effective or that we will not encounter some of the common risks associated with employees accessing Company data and systems remotely. Despite our implementation of security measures, techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently. As a result, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures. Any compromise or perceived compromise of our security could damage our reputation and our relationship with our customers, could reduce demand for our services and could subject us to significant liability as well as regulatory action.

In addition to the risks described above, the COVID-19 pandemic may also have the effect of heightening other risks disclosed in the Risk Factors section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, including, but not limited to, risks related to deterioration in homebuilding and general economic conditions, our geographic concentration, competition, availability of mortgage financing, inventory risks and impairments, supply and/or labor shortages, access to capital markets (including the debt and secondary mortgage markets), impact on joint ventures, compliance with the terms of our indebtedness (including the Credit Facility and the indentures governing our senior notes), potential downgrades of credit ratings, and our leverage.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

					Ap	proximate
					dol	lar value of
				Total number of	sha	res that may
				shares purchased	yet l	e purchased
	Total number			as part of publicly	unde	r the plans or
	of shares	Average price		announced plans	programs	
	purchased	paid	per share	or programs(1)	(in t	housands)(1)
January 1, 2020 to January 31, 2020				_	\$	5,419
February 1, 2020 to February 29, 2020	43,183	\$	5.17	43,183	\$	5,196
March 1, 2020 to March 31, 2020	1,190,700	\$	1.68	1,190,700	\$	3,196
	1,233,883	\$	1.80	1,233,883		

⁽¹⁾ On May 10, 2018, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program (the "Repurchase Program") authorizing the repurchase of the Company's common stock with an aggregate value of up to \$15 million. The Repurchase Program was announced on May 14, 2018. Repurchases of the Company's common stock may be made in open-market transactions, effected through a broker-dealer at prevailing market prices, in privately negotiated transactions, in block trades or by other means in accordance with federal securities laws, including pursuant to any trading plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The board of directors did not fix any expiration date for the Repurchase Program.

(2) Starting March 20, 2020, our repurchases made were done pursuant to a 10b5-1 plan entered into by the Company which covers the period March 20,2020 through May 11, 2020.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

64

Table of Contents

Item 5. Other Information

Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On May 6, 2020, The New Home Company Inc. (the "Company"), IHP Capital Partners VI, LLC ("IHP"), H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, Joseph D. Davis and Thomas Redwitz (the "Founders") (in their individual capacities and as successors in interest to TNHC Partners LLC), entered into Amendment No. 2 (the "Amendment") to that certain Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of February 5, 2014, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Investor Rights Agreement, dated May 22, 2018 (as amended, the "Investor Rights Agreement").

The parties to the Investor Rights Agreement entered into the Amendment to document the termination of the Investor Rights Agreement effective May 6, 2020 as to Thomas Redwitz. As a result, among other things, as of May 6, 2020, Thomas Redwitz is no longer bound by the voting obligations set forth in the Investor Rights Agreement.

Our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 28, 2020 contains additional information regarding our relationships with IHP and the Founders. The Amendment is filed as Exhibit 4.4 hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Number	Exhibit Description
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The New Home Company Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)
3.2	State of Delaware Certificate of Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 1, 2016)
3.3	Amended and Restated Bylaws of The New Home Company Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 1, 2019)
4.1	Specimen Common Stock Certificate of The New Home Company Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Amendment No. 10, filed on January 24, 2014))
4.2	Investor Rights Agreement among The New Home Company Inc., TNHC Partners LLC, IHP Capital Partners VI, LLC, WATT/TNHC LLC, TCN/TNHC LP and collectively H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, Joseph D. Davis and Thomas Redwitz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)
4.3	Amendment No. 1 to Investor Rights Agreement among The New Home Company Inc., TNHC Partners LLC, IHP Capital Partners VI, LLC, WATT/TNHC, LLC, TCN/TNHC LP and collectively H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, Joseph D. Davis and Thomas Redwitz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on form 8-K filed on May 23, 2018)
4.4*	Amendment No. 2 to Investor Rights Agreement among The New Home Company Inc., TNHC Partners LLC, IHP Capital Partners VI, LLC, WATT/TNHC, LLC, TCN/TNHC LP and collectively H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, Joseph D. Davis and Thomas Redwitz
31.1*	Chief Executive Officer Section 302 Certification of Periodic Report
31.2*	Chief Financial Officer Section 302 Certification of Periodic Report
32.1**	Chief Executive Officer Section 906 Certification of Periodic Report
32.2**	Chief Financial Officer Section 906 Certification of Periodic Report
101*	The following materials from The New Home Company Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2020, formatted in Inline eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Equity, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.
104*	Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.
File	ed herewith

Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith. The information in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act, or the Exchange Act (including this Report), unless the Registrant specifically incorporates the foregoing information into those documents by reference.

66

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

The New Home Company Inc.

By: /s/ Leonard S. Miller

Leonard S. Miller

President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ John M. Stephens

Date: May 8, 2020

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO INVESTOR RIGHTS AGREEMENT

RECITALS

- A. The New Home Company Inc. (the "Company"), IHP CAPITAL PARTNERS VI, LLC ("IHP"), H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, Joseph D. Davis and Thomas Redwitz, in their individual capacities and as successors in interest to TNHC Partners LLC ("TNHC Partners"), are parties to that certain Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of February 5, 2014, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Investor Rights Agreement, effective May 22, 2018 (the "Agreement").
- B. Pursuant to Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement, the Agreement was terminated as to WATT/TNHC LLC and TCN/TNHC LP and such parties are no longer parties to the Agreement effective May 22, 2018.
 - C. Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.
- D. Pursuant to Section 6.10(a) of the Agreement, the Company, IHP, and the Holders desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment No. 2 to Investor Rights Agreement (the "Amendment").

AMENDMENT

- 1. <u>Termination of Agreement with Respect to Thomas Redwitz</u>. The Company, IHP, and the Holders agree that the Agreement is terminated with respect to Thomas Redwitz. The Agreement shall survive and continue to bind the Company, IHP, H. Lawrence Webb, Wayne J. Stelmar, and Joseph D. Davis.
 - 2. <u>Effective Date of Amendment</u>. This Amendment shall be effective as of May 6, 2020 (the "<u>Effective Date</u>").
- 3. <u>Further Assurances</u>. Each party to this Amendment shall execute, deliver, acknowledge and file any such other documents and take such further actions as may be reasonably requested from time to time by any other party hereto to give effect to and carry out the actions contemplated herein.
- 4. <u>Counterparts</u>. This Amendment may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original and all of which together will be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered, all as of the Effective Date.

IHP CAPITAL PARTNERS VI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: Institutional Housing Partners VI L.P., a California limited partnership, its Manager

By: IHP Capital Partners, a California corporation, its General Partner

By: /s/ Douglas C. Neff

Douglas C. Neff, its Chief Executive Officer

By; /s/ Richard S. Whiteley
Richard S. Whiteley, its Co-President

[Signature Page Follows]

The following individuals both in their individual capacities and as successors in interest to TNHC Partners:

H. LAWRENCE WEBB

/s/ H. Lawrence Webb

WAYNE J. STELMAR

/s/ Wayne J. Stelmar

JOSEPH D. DAVIS

/s/ Joseph D. Davis

THOMAS REDWITZ

/s/ Thomas Redwitz

THE NEW HOME COMPANY INC., a Delaware corporation

By: <u>/s/ John Stephen</u>s

John Stephens, its Chief Financial Officer

Section 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Leonard S. Miller, certify that:

- (1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of The New Home Company Inc.;
- (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- (4) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- (5) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2020 /s/ Leonard S. Miller

Leonard S. Miller

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Section 302 CERTIFICATION

I, John M. Stephens, certify that:

- (1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of The New Home Company Inc.;
- (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- (4) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- (5) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2020 /s/ John M. Stephens

John M. Stephens Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of The New Home Company Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Leonard S. Miller, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 8, 2020 /s/ Leonard S. Miller

Leonard S. Miller

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of The New Home Company Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2020 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, John M. Stephens, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 8, 2020 /s/ John M. Stephens

John M. Stephens

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)